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Financial Highlights

LSS

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2018

S

BE —F-N\F=ZA=1—HIFFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue Wz
Sales of properties MEIHE 974,278 -
Rental income AU A 129,604 57,899
Water supply business KR 46,790 27,893
Total Revenue Pl 1,150,672 85,792
Net (loss) profit attributable to IR PEALF (ER) &R
shareholders (502,839) 1,220,221
Dividends B’ - -
Shareholders’ equity BERER 4,826,758 4,982,702
Per share data EREE
Earnings 27 HK$(0.05) HK$0.13
(0.05)& T 0.13% T
Dividends &% 2
Total #Et - -
Interim AR HA - -
Final N HA - -
Shareholders’ equity g HK$0.47 HK$0.52
0.47% 7T 0.52%87T
Net assets BEFE HK$0.47 HK$0.53
0.47%8 T 0.53% 7T
Financial ratio B 7 EE B
Payout ratio K BR 0 0
Net debt to equity ratio [note) SEEIRRE R R (A5t 1.10 0.90
Debt to equity ratio [note) BT = L 3R (M aT) 1.19 0.93

Note: Debt include total borrowings of the Group. Net debt is defined as
total borrowings less bank balances and cash of the Group.

Bt -

ERBEANEEZER
B & RBERIRTT R
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders and Stakeholders,

| have pleasure in presenting the annual results of Master Glory
Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”] for the year ended 31 March 2018.

China has become one of the largest e-commerce markets in
the world. Coupled with the increasingly trusted digital payments
infrastructure, it is anticipated that the number of Chinese
consumers shopping online will continue to surge in the coming
year. Many retailers are now actively engaged in selling through
the rising online ecosystems or through their own e-commerce
websites, and this is one of the challenges our leased out

commercial properties will face.

In May last year, the A-Mall shopping mall in Guangzhou officially
opened. In May this year, having overcome all hurdles, the 3-levels
spectacular cinema centre, comprising IMAX cinema, has been
officially put into service and is now in full operation. On top of that,
all required permits for the passage which connect the second
basement floor of the mall with the line 1 and line 2 interchange
metro station (Gongyuangian station] has finally been obtained. The
direct connection passage with the metro station will be opened
for use after completion of construction work. Seeking to embrace
trendy shopping, dining and movie entertainment as highlights, and
taking advantage of the location atop the metro station, this will for
sure make big contribution to the number of shoppers and dinners

to A-Mall, thereby generating stable rental income for the Group.

Master Glory Group Limited S\ESEABR AT

HBRREFNE

RARIA 2 #FMaster Glory Group Limited S
SEERAR(TARE]) REWB AR (5HE
[AEEDBZE_Z—\F=A=+—HILFE
ZERFEERE -

TREXRAEZHEAEFEBT S L — BN
EHREA SEM E TSN AR - FRAT KA
ERBY2HEDEEEHE SBERE - B
HETEFRBTH BLE 2 BMERRTRE
FEFZETHRBEREENERE  ELER
BAHEREMES EEE R EH —EDE -

EZFERA - BMA-MallBEWHR L EXNRE - 5
FHA REREEEGE  HEZB(HF
BREIMAXE ) M SR EZHE EX R AR
BRAIE 2MEEE o RULAIN - BAIINEREG
EERSA_ERIbE —  CHEEM(RE
BIMh) 2 BEMR 2B AE - it g
BEEBESCRETRB TRMAMER -
NEEER - BRREFRESTHAA-Mall
BEYRL  AREMEEEZED  EEEY
BIZRA-Mall B R AENBEEHEEHERE
B Rt ASEAEBERESKA -



While the vast majority of the investments of the Group are in the
properties segment, we are not limited to retailing commercial
properties. One of the goals of our expansion is to solidify and
activate new business opportunities in China. The Group will
continue to look for lucrative investment opportunities adopting a

prudent approach.

' would like to offer my sincere thanks to my fellow board members
and employees for their extremely hard work, enthusiasm,
resourcefulness, and contribution to the Group in the past year, and
to our shareholders for their continued support. | will continue to
work with other members of the board to guide the Group to achieve

growth and sustainability of our business.

Dr. Yap Allan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018

BEARBERBNDZREBNYELE - ER
MLETFBREREEFHEYE - WAHEP—EE
B2 BERZEMBETENEE - AEEAS
HERESSHKREHEERRZREKS -

AAROBRHEEGXNEREETINBE—F
WEH - AW T8 WRBEAEEELENE
BR - AN IR R — B A RS AP Y S FF o
AANRBEEREEEGREETFAE  5IRE
SERAEBERISERE -

EY=1
ERgEL

B —E-\FRAZTNA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

Results and Financial Review
Results

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’'s consolidated loss
was HK$497.8 million (2017: profit of HK$1,222.2 million], which
comprised mainly revenue from water supply business of HK$46.8
million (2017: HK$27.9 million], revenue from property trading
and leasing of HK$1,103.9 million (2017: HK$57.9 million], cost of
sales of HK$1,093.3 million (2017: HK$17.0 million), other income
of HK$40.9 million (2017: HK$16.8 million), gain on other gains and
losses and other expenses of HK$255.7 million (2017: HK$2,311.2
million), distribution and selling costs of HK$15.7 million (2017:
HK$15.3 million), administrative expenses of HK$214.9 million
(2017: HK$135.8 million), finance costs of HK$424.4 million (2017:
HK$247.4 million], share of loss of associates of HK$19.6 million
(2017: HK$19.5 million), share of loss of a joint venture of HK$8.5
million (2017: HK$13.8 million) and income tax expense of HK$168.8
million (2017: HK$742.9 million).

The decrease in gain on other gains and losses and other expenses
was mainly attributable to a non-recurring combining effect of
a gain on fair value changes upon transfer of properties under
development for sale to investment properties of HK$2,732.4
million netted off by an impairment loss of HK$265.1 million on
properties held for sale and an impairment loss of HK$115.6 million
on goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 March 2017. These items did not arise during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

The loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company was

HK$502.8 million (2017: profit of HK$1,220.2 million) and the basic
loss per share was HK$0.05 (2017: profit per share HK$0.13].

Master Glory Group Limited S\ESEABR AT

RERMBERE

HE_Z-N\EZA=t+—HLFE A£H
Z 4R A K18 5497,800,0008 T ( —F — L 4F :
& F111,222,200,00087T) - FEBFEHEKER
YT A 46,800,000 7t ( — = —+£4F : 27,900,000
Bor) c MEBE RAEWRAI,103,900,0007%
JL(—Z—-t4 :57,900,000/87T) * #HEKK
1,093,300,000% 7L (== —+ 4 : 17,000,000
HIT) « HAbU A 40,900,000 T (=T —+
& : 16,800,000 7T ) - H Uk & K B 1B A
Ko E th B 32 F7 /5 UK 25 255,700,000 L (=&
—-t % :2311,200,000870) ~ D REEK
7515,700,000% 7L ( =& — -+ 4 : 15,300,000
FSIT) ~ fTHRFI 214,900,000 (=T —+
£ : 135,800,000/ 7T) « 817 & F 424,400,000
BIL(ZZF—+HF 1 247,400,00087T) ~ FEAS
& N E)E51819,600,0008 T (—ZF — £ 4 ¢
19,500,000 7T) - BIE—HEEDEEIE
8,500,000 L (=& —+4F : 13,800,000 T )
M P18 H168,800,000/8 T (= F — 4 ¢
742,900,000/87T) °

H A U gk B2 5 98 LA 2 LAt B S P A5 s 2
TERE —FEELEEUREER  IFERR
PYEBREREMER I ATFTEEH NS
2,732,400,0008 7 - #EHRIKRHBE_T—tF
AT -HLEEREHEEDE ORERERE
265,100,000 7T R WHEH B A RIFTEA 2 mE
ZmER1E 115,600,000 LATRE - BEZT
—\E=ZA=t+—BLFELEELLLIAL -

RNATHEAR AEL 2SN EE /502,800,000
TL(ZZE—+EF : %7F1,220,200,000/7T) M
BREXEEBRIGET(ZE—+F : 8RE
Fo3ET) -



Results and Financial Review (Continued)]
Segment Results
Property development, investment and trading

During the year ended 31 March 2018, substantial units of
the shopping arcade of #&#& KXE (also known as A-Mall)
in Guangzhou were leased out to tenants including certain
international and prestige local brands and rental income was
generated accordingly. Apart from certain serviced-apartments held
by the Group for rental purpose, titles of the remaining serviced-
apartments had been transferred to the buyers upon obtaining the
licenses from the relevant governmental authorities during the year.
The related sales revenue of HK$974.3 million was generated from

the project.

Other developed commercial properties such as =& &% (also
known as Golden Plazal), JA% &% (also known as Podong Plaza) and
ZEl& KJE, all located at prime locations in Guangzhou, contributed to

secure recurring stable rental income during the year.

The segment turnover from property leasing and trading for the
year ended 31 March 2018 was HK$1,103.9 million (2017: HK$57.9
million). The segment recorded a profit of HK$112.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$2,564.9 million).
This decrement was mainly attributable to a gain of HK$2,732.4
million on fair value changes upon transfer of properties under
development for sale to investment properties, netted off by an
impairment loss on properties held for sale of HK$265.1 million
and an impairment loss on goodwill arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries of HK$115.6 million during the year ended 31 March
2017 which did not arise during the year ended 31 March 2018.

EERUBOREGE)

DIRFAE

MEER KREREER

REBEZEZT-—N\F=ZA=1T—HILFE IR
BN E A e NE (XTEA-Mall) 69 88 1 B
N2 ABHEMELETHER  EREEET
B mE LA MEZmE  FkZEE B HR
EEBESBA  BAEEFEETHIELE
WRBREETI K THRBRNETHER
RSB BT AP IR AT % - ERAEE
ABRER - B%RBAEEAZHBHEERRER
974,300,000 7T °

HtDBERZERYE  WESES  HRE
BREEXNE  BUREMNEDHE - RAF
EARAEEGRIBENZEEEESEA

HE_T-N\F=ZA=+—HLFEXREME
%ﬂia&ié'i;izﬁ,iﬁz%%ﬁz% ,103,900,000 8
JE(ZZ—+t4F :57900,000Emw) BE-ZT
—N\FZA=1+—BLFE  ZoEHEHEF
112,200,000 70 (= F — £ :2,564,900,000/%
7o) o wm AR FBRNGFEERRTMEEE
ZREMERZ AT EZENEE2,732,400,000
B MBEE-_T—t&=-A=+—81
FERFIEHS Y E 2 B EE 8 265,100,000
BLIRBEMNBARMEACEHEZRER
115,600,000 - REBZE=ZFT—NF=A
=T—HIEFEYREAZFIER °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

Results and Financial Review (Continued]
Segment Results [Continued]

Trading of Securities

The segment recorded a loss of HK$7.3 million (2017: HK$0.9
million) mainly attributable to fair value loss recognised on listed
securities which were marked up to the market price as at the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position and loss on

disposal of listed securities held for trading.

Water Supply

During the year under review, the Group successfully introduced a
new customer which gives rise to an improved performance. The
Group will continuously put effort in scaling up the water supply
through negotiating with existing customers and implementing
effective costs control measures in this business in order to boost
the profit margin.

For water supply segment, the revenue was HK$46.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2018, increased by HK$18.9 million (67.7%]
from 2017 and segment result recorded a profit of HK$19.1 million
during the year, increased by HK$13.5 million from HK$5.6 million
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Interests in Associates

During the year, share of results of associates amounted to loss
of HK$19.6 million (2017: HK$19.5 million], mainly arise from
share of profit of HK$2.2 million (2017: HK$0.2 million) from China
Enterprises Limited and share of loss of HK$21.8 million (2017:
HK$17.6 million) from Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited.

Master Glory Group Limited S\ESEABR AT

EERUBOREGE)

DI (E)

ZD KRS E 17,300,000 T (2T —+4F :
900,000/87T) » T2RNEETEFDHERLZ
RNFHEBRC MK RZEAMBEIRAR AR Z™
BREERERSZ LHEFZEE

oK

REBFER  AEERNSIA-—EZHEPS -
TEHRBEAMAE - AEESEEBNERE
EPEBBARKER T RZEBHEITAR
ZEAYEIFE R - (ETIRS A o

BE-Z-—N\FZA=Z+—BLFEHKD
2 WA BL6,8000008 T BT —+F
#9118,900,0008 7T (67.7%) * FARADFEE
861305 #)19,100,00008 70 - B®EE=ZT —+
F=ZA=+—HBI1EFE 25600000 TE M
13,500,000/ 7T °

REE QR 2B

FA - ELEE QP EESSETE19,600,000
B (ZZT—+4 19,500,000 7T) * TERA
JE{5China Enterprises Limited 72,200,000
HBIL(ZZF—+4F : 200,000 70) MEGIAREE
JEPRRE B PR A A& 821,800,000 L (= —+
4 :17,600,00057C) °



Liquidity and financial resources

Bank balances and cash as at 31 March 2018 were HK$430.7 million
(31 March 2017: HK$104.0 million). The gearing ratio (borrowings/
shareholders’ funds) at 31 March 2018 was 118.6% (31 March
2017: 92.5%). As at 31 March 2018, bank and other borrowings
of the Group were approximately HK$5,723.9 million (31 March
2017: HK$4,609.9 million). The increase in borrowings was mainly
attributable to new borrowings in the PRC. The Group’s borrowings

bore fixed or floating interest rates as at 31 March 2017 and 2018.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2018, certain assets of the Group amounting to
HK$10,694.6 million (31 March 2017: HK$10,314.5 million) were
pledged to banks and financial institutions for loan facilities granted
to the Group.

Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

The majority of the Group’'s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi. The
Group will consider entering into hedging contracts to eliminate
any exposures to downside risks, whenever the Group and the
concerned foreign subsidiaries think fit. At the reporting date, the
Group did not enter into any interest rate speculative and hedging

contracts.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$75.0 million was given by the Group to a bank in respect of
banking facilities granted to an associate. The banking facilities of
approximately HK$27.3 million was utilised by the associate as at 31
March 2017. The Company has settled amount owed by the associate
to the bank under the financial guarantee and the bank released the
respective financial guarantee contract subsequently. The Group did
not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2018.

RBEERYBER

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—B2ZRTEHRES
#430,700,0008 0 (= E—+F=A=+—8 :
104,000,000 7T) c R=ZZE—N\F=A=+—
HBEEALEER BRREL)A118.6%
(ZE—+tFE=ZA=+—H :925%) - R=F
—NF=ZA=+—8 AEBEZHRITRHEM
&3 497/55,723,900,0008 T (= E—+ = A
=+—H :4,609,900,000/7C) - EFIEMER
BRABENFER R+ ER _E—N
F=A=+—80  AEBEZEHZREEMER
FEFIEEE o

EEEKH
R-_B-NF=ZRA=+—H AEEH
10,694,600,0008 T (—_E—+tHF=A=+—

H :10,314,500,0008 0) 2 & T EEERIE TR
TREREE  URBETAEB 2 EREER -

BE R e AR B

AEBMARIBAEHRS - BERABEHUET
RARKE - AREBREAS RAREEIN
MBARRASERER - EEFTLEIFELIA
HHEMTMER - REBERAH  AEE W E
FISLAEM R R R R4 -

HAREE

RZZE—+F=ZF=+—8  NE@H—HEH
ENRFTERRITEEMMRITIEL A RE
875,000,000 c RZE—+F=A=+—
B BITEE#4927,300,0008 LB M £ A

AIBA - ARRIEREBEMBERIFZBER

RIRRITZ 8 HEZRITCBBRBMTS
ERER - RZE—-—N\F=A=1+—H 4%
B EEARARE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

Event after the reporting period

On 31 May 2018, the Company entered into a non-legal binding
memorandum of understanding with an independent third party
on the disposal of certain issued share capital of Ally Fortune
Investments Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the "Target
Group”) which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Proposed Disposal”]. The Target Group is principally engaged in
the development of real estate in the PRC and is holding certain
property interests in a building in Guangzhou, the PRC. Detailed
terms and conditions, including the consideration of the Proposed
Disposal will be subject to further negotiation between the parties
thereto and the entering into of a formal agreement. For details,
please refer to the Company’'s announcement dated 31 May 2018.

Taking into consideration the capital appreciation of the property
in Guangzhou in recent years, the Group is of the view that the
Proposed Disposal will provide an appropriate opportunity for it to
realise its investment. Should the Proposed Disposal materialise,
it will strengthen the liquidity and overall financial position of the
Group and offer reasonable returns. No definitive agreement in
relation to the Proposed Disposal has been entered into up to the

date of this report.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2018, there were 87 employees (31 March 2017: 114)
employed by the Group. The remuneration policies are formulated
on the basis of performance of individual employees and the
prevailing salaries’ trends in the various regions. They are subject to
be reviewed every year. The Group also provides employee training
programs, a mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance

and discretionary bonuses.

Master Glory Group Limited S\ESEABR AT

BERRER

RZEBE—NFRA=1+—8  AREIHEBIF
ZEAREEARRTEZEWEBARAL y Fortune
Investments Limited GER E B R urE
|—H*?%%@J)%¥E§§‘TTHX$(U§E&&?%$I§D
RINDERBEBAR Nz RRETE - BIEEE
FTEEHENEEMEREES  URHEPEH
BIN—EBRF2ETMEER  FHEERELE
FIE 2GR RAEH (BRERE) eI #7788

—SHEBUEITERGZE - FEEE - 7155
2BARRBPATE-N\FRA=T—HZ

NI

RET MO FERMMETE  ARERREHL
EFER/BREEREREHRYE - MERLE
EFEZE ARNBRAEEZRBESRE
BUBKALERAIEOR - BEARE BB
1k RARRBEZ L EFHAT LI HR

=3
AR °

BERFMEE

EA_?*)\¢ZHZ+*EI F REBRMATEH
BE(CZE—LF=A=1+—RH 114%EER) -
#ﬁ@ﬂ\ﬂlﬁﬁ)’ﬂi%ﬁl%“ﬁ/\Z%EE&T\WME%
B2 EH B mEIE - AEBEESEFinn &M
BEK - AEBEREHEIEE - 2t ER
HE - BERRREEBIEATES -



Director’s Profile

EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. YAP Allan, aged 62, joined the Company in 1995. In September
2008, Dr. Yap was elected as the Chairman of the Company. Dr. Yap
holds an Honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and has over 30
years’ experience in finance, investment and banking. Dr. Yap
is the chairman and an executive director of Rosedale Hotel
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Dr. Yap is the chairman and chief executive officer of
China Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares are traded on
the OTC Market in the United States of America, as well as Burcon
NutraScience Corporation, a company whose shares are listed on
the Toronto Stock Exchange in Canada and the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange in Germany and traded on the OTC Market in the United
States of America. Dr. Yap is the executive chairman of Hanwell
Holdings Limited and Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd, both of which
are companies whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Limited.

Dr. Yap ceased to be the honorary chairman and non-executive
director of SMI Holdings Group Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from
28 November 2017.

HITES

BRBEL 25 R ANAAFMALR
A EHLIR_ZZNFNABEEREAA
IR BRIREEAEKERLEM - YRE
BOREMMITEBTEBEOA=TFER -
EHTAPBEBEEERBERIRZ EREFAN
TEF  ZRAZROREEBERHME
RAR(TERPT])ER ET - B L RChina
Enterprises Limited (KA R EB BB TS E
&) KBurcon NutraScience Corporation(E %
MRIMERZ MZEFRH M RIEEDER =R
FERRGH LT UREBRERTSHEE) 2
EREFRITHAEE - B+ AHanwell Holdings
Limited &2 Tat Seng Packaging Group LtdZ#i
TER ZFRAZRMDERAMEESZS
FrERAR] LT -

BE-Z—+tHF+—A -+ /B EFLTLH
EIEExXERERERAR (ERMHARBZATE
RET)ZEBEFERIEFRITES o
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Director’s Profile

EEEE

Mr. HEUNG Pik Lun, Edmond, aged 56, joined the Group in
December 2010 as a director of Master Glory Development (China)
Company Limited (formerly known as Hanny Development (China)
Company Limited), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in February 2011. Mr. Heung is responsible for strategic
planning and property development, investment and trading
business of the Group. Mr. Heung has started developing real estate
projects in China since 1992 and has maintained a strong business
network. Possessing in-depth knowledge in the South China
market, Mr. Heung has participated in more than a hundred real
estate development projects. Prior to entering the China property
development market, Mr. Heung also has decades of property

development experience in Canada and South East Asia.

Mr. Heung is a holder of a bachelor’s degree of Arts from Windsor
University, Canada. Mr. Heung is a member of ISCM (Institute of
Shopping Centre Management) since 2011 and in June 2013, he was
also elected a professional member of RICS (The Royal Institution of

Chartered Surveyors] as a Chartered Project Management Surveyor.
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EEMEE > 565 RZE—ZFF+ZAMA
KEBE - FARR—HEEZEWNB AR -3
FRR(PE)ARAR(FIEBREZR(RE)E
BRABNZEE  WHR_T——F_AKZHA
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Dr. WU Guangsheng, aged 39, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 14 September 2016. Dr. Wu graduated
from Wuhan University in 2001 with a bachelor's degree majoring
in Corporate Management and minoring in Economic Law. He
holds a doctoral degree in Marketing from Wuhan University as
from June 2018. Dr. Wu is the chairman of ZEFAFABRMDERA
7] (Huaxun Fangzhou Co., Ltd*) ["Huaxun Fangzhou"), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000687). Dr.
Wu has extensive experience in telecommunications and satellite
communications industries and has received many accolades by the

Chinese authorities in the field of technology ventures.

In 2003, Dr. Wu founded b RiHREIFRIEEFAABMR AT (Beijing
Zhuangyuan International Investment Consulting Company
Limited*), a company principally engaged in providing corporate
consulting services, and served as the vice chairman of its board
of directors until 2007. Dr. Wu acted as the vice chairman and
chief executive officer of ZEFF AR AR AR (Huaxun Fangzhou
Technology Company Limited*])("Huaxun Fangzhou Technology”)
since 2007 and acts as the chairman as from 2017. Huaxun
Fangzhou Technology is the controlling shareholder of Huaxun

Fangzhou.

Dr. Wu serves as a member of the Standing Committee of the
Executive Committee of All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce (BRI THEBAMITEZESEKZLZE), a member of the
Economic Affairs Committee of the Standing Committee of
Shenzhen Municipal People’s Congress [RIITTAREZ @4E T 1E
ZE 2% 8) and a member of the Strategic Advisory Committee for
enhancing enterprise competitiveness in Shenzhen (FEIITIEA
ERFNEMANEZEEZEE). He is the Chairman of the Presidium
of Federation of Shenzhen Industries D&Y TE A S+ FE F F)
and the Vice Chairman of the Guangdong-HK-Macao Bay Area

Entrepreneurs Union (B8R XEE b RFKEBREIEF.

* foridentification purpose only
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Director’s Profile

EEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. KWOK Ka Lap, Alva, aged 70, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director since July 2003. He was a marketing manager
in an international company engaging in the design of business
administration system. Mr. Kwok has been in the insurance and
investments business for over 30 years, principally in the senior
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited
and Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited, both of which are companies

whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. POON Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 57, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director since February 2007. Mr. Poon graduated
from the University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of
Science degree in Business Administration. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the CPA Australia. Mr. Poon is currently an independent
non-executive director of Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited and
Shaw Brothers Holdings Limited, both of which are companies

whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. SIN Chi Fai, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since January 2008. Mr. Sin is a director and a shareholder
of a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of data storage
media and computer related products in Asian countries. He
obtained a diploma in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and is a
member of the Singapore Institute of Directors. He has over 20
year's sales and marketing experience in information technology
industries and in the banking field. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, and an independent director of China Enterprises
Limited, a company whose shares are traded on the OTC Market in
the United States of America.
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Dr. WU Chun Wah, aged 53, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2016. Dr. Wu holds
a doctor degree in business administration and a master degree in
corporate governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He also holds a master degree in business administration from
Northeast Louisiana University, a diploma of China trade and
investment from Beijing University, a diploma of China laws from
Guangdong Economic Laws Research Centre and a postgraduate
diploma in management from Asia International Open University. He
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the

Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

Dr. Wu has extensive experience in financial investment and
corporate finance. He is the chief executive officer of China
Chengtong Asset Management (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. which is
wholly-owned by China Chengtong Holdings Group Ltd., a central
enterprise supervised by State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission. He is an independent non-executive
director of TANSH Global Food Group Co., Ltd (formerly known as
Xiao Nan Guo Restaurants Holdings Limited), a company whose

shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Wu was an independent non-executive director of FDB Holdings
Limited (now known as Dafy Holdings Limited], a company whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, from
November 2017 to January 2018.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERWE

Master Glory Group Limited (the "Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”] is committed to ensuring and maintaining
good standards of corporate governance, geared to achieving
corporate goals and enhancing the interests of shareholders. The
board of directors (the "Board”) of the Company formalises the
corporate governance practices of the Company by adopting its
corporate governance code based on the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”]) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”). The CG Code along with the Bye-Laws of the Company
and the terms of references of the Board Committees, provide
the corporate governance framework of the Company. This report
discloses how the Company has applied the principles of the CG
Code for the year ended 31 March 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Company has complied with the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2018, except with deviations from code provisions
A2.1, A4 1 and E.1.2.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The role of the chief executive is currently
performed by the chairman of the Company, Dr. Yap Allan. The
Board has evaluated such arrangement which has been in effect for
some years, and considers that it will not impair the effectiveness
of the Board as well as the management of the operations of the
Group.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation at the Company’s annual general meetings in accordance
with the Bye-Laws of the Company. As at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors of the Company (or such number
as nearest to but not less than one-third) must retire by rotation,
each of the directors of the Company is effectively appointed for a
term of approximately two to three years.
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Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. The chairman of the
Company, Dr. Yap Allan, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 15 September 2017 due to his
travelling commitment. Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond, an executive
director of the Company, attended and chaired the meeting and
answered questions from the shareholders of the Company.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven members, including three
executive directors, Dr. Yap Allan (Chairman], Mr. Heung Pik
Lun, Edmond and Dr. Wu Guangsheng and four independent non-
executive directors, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing,
Albert, Mr. Sin Chi Fai and Dr. Wu Chun Wah. Biographical details
of the directors of the Company (the "Directors”) and the relevant
relationships among them, if any, are set out in the "Director’s
Profile” on pages 11 to 15 of the annual report. The Company has
maintained an updated list of Directors identifying their role and
function and whether they are independent non-executive directors
on the websites of the Company as well as the Stock Exchange.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive directors
and independent non-executive directors and possesses a wide
spectrum of relevant skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the Group's business. One of the independent non-
executive directors has the professional accounting qualifications
as required under the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation from each non-executive director about his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers all of the non-executive directors to be independent. The
Board’s composition is in compliance with the requirement under
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules that the number of independent non-
executive directors must represent at least one-third of the Board.

All Board members are kept informed of material changes about
the businesses of the Group and are provided with monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’'s
performance, position and prospects. All Directors have separate
and independent access to the management and to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. A written procedure has been
agreed for Directors to seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense upon their request.
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6 Board meetings and 1 general meeting were held during the year
ended 31 March 2018. Individual attendances of each Board member

at these Board meetings and general meeting are shown below:

Directors =
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. Yap Allan EXREEL
Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond mEmEE
Dr. Wu Guangsheng ReBEL

Independent Non-Executive Directors — U IFHITESE

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva HELEE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B L5 A4
Mr. Sin Chi Fai B S
Dr. Wu Chun Wah SRR+

All Directors participated in the continuous professional
development programme of the Company which aims at enabling
the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and to perform
their duties. The professional development programme arranged
by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 focused on
director’'s duties, regulatory updates and corporate governance
matters. The Directors are also encouraged to attend suitable

trainings at the expense of the Company.
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Directors BEx

Dr. Yap Allan ERBEL
Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond AEmEE
Dr. Wu Guangsheng RikBEL
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva EIE AV
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B S
Mr. Sin Chi Fai R E
Dr. Wu Chun Wah SREEF L

Each of the Directors has provided the Company a record of training
he received during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Board represents shareholders of the Company in managing
the Company’s affairs with the objective of enhancing shareholders
value, and represents the highest level of authority in the
governance structure of the Company. Its principal functions are
to formulate corporate strategies and directions particularly in
relation to operating plans, corporate governance and business
development, to monitor and control the operating and financial
performance of the Group. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
business is delegated to the Executive Committee. The delegation
of responsibilities and authority is reviewed regularly to ensure
that the appropriate reporting systems are in place. The Board
has reserved for its decision and consideration matters covering
corporate strategy, dividend policy, major acquisitions, disposals
and capital transactions, annual and interim results, changes of
members of the Board and its committees, and other significant

operational and financial matters.
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The roles of the chairman and the chief executive are performed by
Dr. Yap Allan. A division of responsibilities at the Board level has
been maintained to entail a balance of power and authority. The
Board will continue to review the management structure ensuring
appropriate management development and succession plans, taking

into consideration the nature and extent of the Group's operation.

The Company has arranged for Directors” and Officers’ Liability
Insurance to indemnify its Directors and officers against potential
liabilities incurred by them in discharging their duties. The
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers is reviewed on an

annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to assist
in carrying out its responsibilities: the Executive Committee,
the Investment Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee
and the Audit Committee. Each committee oversees particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and report regularly to the Board.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are available on both
the Company’s and Stock Exchange’s websites.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors. The
members of the Executive Committee include Dr. Yap Allan (who
acts as chairman of the committee), Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond
and Dr. Wu Guangsheng. The Executive Committee meets as and
when required to oversee the day-to-day management and operation

of the Group’s business.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises an independent non-
executive director Dr. Wu Chun Wah (who acts as chairman of the
committee) and an executive director Dr. Yap Allan. The Investment
Committee meets as and when required to review investment
strategies and projects so as to enhance the Group's investment

returns.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (who acts as
chairman of the committee), Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and Dr. Yap
Allan.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors” and senior management’s remuneration,
on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, and on the remuneration of non-executive
directors. The remuneration packages of Directors are based
on their individual performance, salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee
will ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration and have access to professional

advice if considered necessary.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2018 and reviewed the structure and levels of remuneration
paid to executive directors and made recommendation in respect
of the structure and levels of remuneration of the non-executive
directors. Individual attendance of each Remuneration Committee

member at the meeting is shown below:

Remuneration Committee Member FHEEERE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva = EAE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B 4 A
Dr. Yap Allan L Vicilin
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive directors and one executive director. The members
of the Nomination Committee are Dr. Wu Chun Wah (who acts as
chairman of the committee], Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok
Hing, Albert and Dr. Yap Allan.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board and identify individuals suitably qualify to
become Board members as well as nominates and recommends to

the Board candidates for filling vacancies on the Board.

The Nomination Committee also monitors the implementation of
the board diversity policy. The policy is to ensure that the Board
members with the necessary range of knowledge and skills
embrace diversity in regional and industry experience, cultural and

educational background, age and gender.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2018, at which the committee assessed the independence
of the non-executive Directors and reviewed the contributions and
time required from the Directors. Individual attendance of each

Nomination Committee member at the meeting is shown below:

Nomination Committee Member REZEEHE
Dr. Wu Chun Wah SRR L
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva AL
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B B A
Dr. Yap Allan HERBELT
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors and one executive director. The members
of the Corporate Governance Committee are Dr. Wu Chun Wah (who
acts as chairman of the committee), Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
Dr. Yap Allan.

The Corporate Governance Committee develops and reviews the
policies and practices on corporate governance, disclosures in
Corporate Governance Report and makes recommendations to the

Board to maintain good standards of corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Committee met once during the
year ended 31 March 2018 at which the committee reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code and
the annual corporate governance report.

Individual attendance of each Corporate Governance Committee
member at the meeting is shown below:
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Dr. Wu Chun Wah SPERZEIE - 1/
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert A B B A Al
Dr. Yap Allan HERBELT 11
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Audit Committee

Major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a) To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
review and monitor the independence and objectivity of the
external auditor and effectiveness of the audit process;

(b] To review the Company's financial information and significant
financial reporting judgements contained in the annual report

and half-year report before submission to the Board;

(c)] To oversee the Company's financial reporting systems, risk
management and internal control systems and to review the
external auditor’'s management letter and material queries

raised by the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Poon Kwok
Hing, Albert (who acts as chairman of the committee), Mr. Kwok Ka
Lap, Alva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai. All Audit Committee members have
appropriate qualifications and experience to properly discharge its

roles and responsibilities.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review with the auditor the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 September
2017, with recommendations to the Board for approval; to review
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems; and to approve the audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor for the year ended 31 March 2018. Individual
attendance of each Audit Committee member at these meetings is

shown below:

Audit Committee Member EREEERE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B B 5% A
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva R EE
Mr. Sin Chi Fai P &

Auditor’'s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the amount paid to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, auditor of the Company, in respect of the audit
and non-audit services provided are as follows:
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Audit Committee Meetings
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Amount

Type of services RisER &8
HK$'000

FAET

Audit EZ 3,848
Non-audit IEEZ 274
Total: At 4,122
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the "Model Code”] as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed the
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for the period concerned.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and,
apart from the new and revised accounting policies as disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, applied
them consistently with previously financial periods. The Directors
have made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and the financial statements are prepared on a going

concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 39 to 46.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it has the overall responsibility
for establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in achieving the
Company's strategic business objectives. The Audit Committee,
acting on behalf of the Board, oversees and reviews the

effectiveness of these systems on an ongoing basis.
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Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Group’'s risk management framework comprises two key
elements: the corporate governance structure and the risk

management process.

Roles and responsibilities in the process of risk management
are assigned across different levels of the corporate governance
structure to enable implementation of policies and controls
and to facilitate execution of risk management practices. The
governance structure is complemented by independent external
auditor and consultant who provide independent assurances and
recommendations on the effectiveness of the risk management

processes.

Such risk management and internal control systems are designed
for managing risk rather than eliminating the risk of failure in
operational systems and achievement of business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against

material misstatement or loss.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

Under the changing external environment, key and emerging risks
affecting corporate strategies and objectives are identified for
existing operations as well as new projects. Key risks are evaluated
based on the likelihood of their occurrence and significance of their
impact on the achievement of business objectives. Appropriate
risk responses will be deployed to mitigate (e.g. through internal
controls) or transfer (e.g. through insurance policies) risks
exposures to an acceptable level. Risk management and internal
controls are monitored to ensure risk responses are operated
effectively, with the Board and Board Committees reported on a

regular basis.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed

annually to ensure appropriateness and effectiveness.

The Group does not have an internal audit division. The Audit
Committee appraise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems and
engage an independent consultant to provide assurance and report
on their evaluation of the systems on an annual basis.

During the year, the Company has engaged an independent
consultant to assess the risk management and internal controls
over certain business processes of the Company. Their report
provided observations, reasonable assurance and recommendations
to enable the Board to evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, the reliability of financial reporting and the compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the report from the independent consultant and
considered the risk management and internal control systems
effective and adequate. The Board has endorsed the Audit

Committee’s assessment.

The Audit Committee has been reported twice during the year by the

external auditor, in conjunction with key findings identified.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Company has established a policy which strictly prohibit
unauthorised use of inside information. The management regulates
the handling and dissemination of inside information to ensure
that inside information remains confidential until the disclosure
of such information is appropriately approved. Management and
personnel who will handle dissemination of inside information are
provided with trainings and regulatory updates on legal obligations
on disclosure of inside information under relevant provisions of the

Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary who reports to the Chairman is an employee
of the Company. The Company Secretary has undertaken at least
15 hours of professional training during the year in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure on-going dialogue with
shareholders and provide shareholders with information necessary
to evaluate the performance of the Company. The Company
has maintained a website at www.mggl.com.hk which enables
shareholders, investors and the general public to have an open
access to the information of the Company. Shareholders can
obtain full and timely information on the Company’s website and
can assess current and historical company data. The annual and
special general meetings also provide the forum for the Board to
meet directly with shareholders. The procedures for shareholders
to request the convening of a special general meeting and to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting are set out below.
Shareholders may write to the Board by addressing to the Company
Secretary at the principal office of the Company at Unit 703, 7/F.,
1063 King's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong, who will forward such
communication to the Board; or via the electronic mailbox provided

on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company can
deposit a written request at the principal office of the Company
to require a Special General Meeting ("SGM”] to be called by the
Company. The written request must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the shareholders concerned, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more of
the requisitionists. An SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Company fails to proceed to convene an SGM, the requisitionists
may themselves convene a meeting, provided that such meeting

shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company or
not less than one hundred members can deposit a written request
at the registered office of the Company to move a resolution at
the next annual general meeting. The written request must state
the notice of intended resolution and any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution, signed by the shareholders concerned,
and may consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more of the requisitionists, together with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto.
Provided that a requisition requiring notice of a resolution is
deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than six
weeks before the meeting, it shall be the duty of the Company to
circulate to members entitled to have notice of the meeting such

notice of intended resolution and any such statement.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWSE

The directors [the "Directors”) of Master Glory Group Limited (the
“Company”) present to the shareholders their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”] for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged in property development, investment and
trading, industrial water supply business, trading of securities and
other strategic investments.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates of
the Company are set out in notes 49 and 20 respectively to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

Details of the results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on pages 47 to 48.

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis as set out
on pages 06 to 10 and the Chairman’s Statement on pages 04 to 05
which contains a review of the Group's business with analysis
using financial key performance indicators and which provides an
indication of the likely future development of the Group, and notes
42 and 43 regarding the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group. Particulars of important events that have occurred since the
end of the financial year are set out in note 51 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Company recognizes the importance of environmental
protection for the sustainable development of our society. The Group
has endeavoured to comply with the relevant environmental laws

and regulations.

Details of the environmental policies and performance of the Group
during the year will be set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report to be published on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) and the
Company no later than three months after the publication of this

annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

Group as far as the Board is aware.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Company understands that employees, customers and suppliers
are key elements to the success of the Group’s business. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to motivate and retain
quality staff and the Group is committed to maintaining a safe and
healthy workplace for our staff. The Group has established good
relationship with customers and suppliers which will enhance the

Group to achieve its business goals.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the

year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to the accumulated profits, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). This is however
subject to the provision that a company shall not declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due
or the realizable value of the company’s assets would thereby be

less than its liabilities.

The Company had no distributable reserves as at 31 March 2018
(2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Yap Allan (Chairman]
Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond
Dr. Wu Guangsheng

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai

Dr. Wu Chun Wah

In accordance with bye-laws 87(2) and 87(3) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Dr. Yap Allan, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Dr. Wu Chun Wah
will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the "AGM"), and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.
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None of the Directors eligible for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SF0"])
which (a) were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or (b) were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as

follows:
Name Capacity
HE 514

Beneficial owner

ERmBEA

Dr. Yap Allan
EZxsEL

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in

note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS”
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors or their respective associates
who had an interest in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Director Name of business

=23 EKEB

Dr. Yap Allan Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
("Rosedale”) and its subsidiaries

EXEEL BB IERAR A A

(M3ARE)) R M 1 A

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, the Company had not been notified of any other interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which were required to be recorded in the register kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2018

(i) the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 15.26% and 20.08% respectively of
the Group's total turnover;

(i) the Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 58.30% and 100% respectively of
the Group's total purchases.

So far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates or shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’'s share capital had any interests in the five largest

customers or suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda, the Company is obliged to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event after the reporting period are set out
in note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 191.

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

The Group’s property portfolio summary is set out on page 192.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and subject to the statutes, the
Company shall indemnify the Directors out of the Company’s assets
and profits against liabilities incurred by a Director in the execution
of his duty. The relevant bye-law was in force during the year ended
31 March 2018 and as at the date of this report. The Company has
arranged for Directors” and Officers’ Liability Insurance to indemnify
the Directors and officers against potential liabilities incurred by
them in discharging their duties. The insurance coverage for the

Directors and officers is reviewed on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
16 to 30.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWSE

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Yap Allan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MASTER GLORY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability]

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Master
Glory Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”] set out on pages 47 to 190,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs"] issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B X ER R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BEEER

BREETER

RRBAFEHSRERMANERAE - RAY
KRG AV BERENEFTRREZNFTE - &
UEFRERMBEAERGAVBHRRLLA
TARETREN - ZAMTSHELFHEMR
BEENER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFcET N EERRENEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFIEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the degree of significant judgements,
associated with determining the fair value.

MR ERHERG AV BRI EBEE - MEREEAT
BERFEHE cEREE B EYEBERRS—
HEARETFR -

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group's
investment properties, which are located in People's
Republic of China (the "PRC"], to be HK$10,360,347,000
at 31 March 2018, with fair value changes for the year
ended 31 March 2018 recorded in profit or loss of
HK$150,106,000.
ERERAR-_ZT-N\F=ZA=+—H  EBE£E
RAEARAMBE([FE]) 2REVELTFERR
10,360,347,00087T * YRNEEZ-_FT—N\F=A=+—8H
L FEERBHBEAFEEE)150,106,00087T °

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BZMBRRENEEEZEFEE

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional valuers (the "Valuers”);
AHEBUERMGHEM(EEM ) 2EE - e REE
M

e Understanding the valuation methodology, assumptions
and estimates used by the Valuers and comparing
them against general market practice for similar
property type;
TRRMAEERMMAERZ[ESE - RR
YRR 2 — RIS EPEITE

ft 5t I S22 AL

e FEvaluating the management’s valuation process, the
valuation methodology, and the significant judgement
and assumptions applied by the management,
including future lease income and yields.
Benchmarking them against market comparable,
historical data and available industry data for
comparable markets and properties; and
AAEREZHERF  GBETEIREEEMERAZ
EXRHERRR - BREARBERA RN - ERA
BL&mES  BEBBRAUAELRMSRYMENFT
KBIBEEITHE R



Key audit matter

HREEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B zEt N ARERRESSER

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)]

REYHG1E(E)

As disclosed in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation of investment
properties requires the application of significant
judgement and estimation in determining the
appropriate valuation methodology to be used, use of
subjective assumptions and various unobservable inputs.
The valuation is sensitive to underlying assumptions
applied by the valuers such as market comparable used
and the capitalisation rate which can have a significant
impact to the valuation.

WA E M MEAMTLRITARE  REVELEFTE
EEEMEANBEEM[ETDE  ERETBRBERMSTERA
BERoE ABUERERAEAHE MGG - MESGERMR
A BERRKR(NERATLLERT S RERMME L R ) 8 - %
ERRUEESHEEATE -

Impairment review of interests in associates

RBEE R B2 B 2 BER

We identified the impairment review of interests in
associates as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the Group’s interests in associates in the context
of the Group’'s consolidated financial statements as
a whole, combined with the judgements involved in
management’s impairment assessment of the interests
in associates.

B BERERBEARzEDY BERERSMBEHRR
BERMEEZHEE  MEEBEHBE AR ZER ZRE
FHERTS K 2 FIE - AR E S R B 2 s 2 R ER R
MRl A—IREARE R -

e Evaluating the adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements, including description of the significant
unobservable inputs.
AERNGEEVBBRRAERBE 2RI ELBENE - &
BREATABEBABIER ZHA -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment review of
interests in associates included:

RABRREE QR 2 s 2R ERS 2T

e Assessing the reasonableness of the recoverable
amounts of the associates and obtaining understanding
from management of the financial position and future
prospects of the associates; and
AHEBERR AR R s S BERMERE T 5
ERBZHBARRARERER + &
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B X ER R

Key audit matter

HREEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B zEt N ARERRESSER

Impairment review of interests in associates (Continued)

REBE R a2 s 2 BER ()

The Group's interests in associates represented
investments in associates listed in Hong Kong and
oversea. The carrying value of the Group’s interests
in associates as at 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$550,197,000.
BEEERBERRZERERBB B EM 2B E QA
ZIRE -RZTE-N\F=ZRA=+—H X BEEEREZED
Bl 7 e 2 BRTH{E /550,197,000 7T °

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, interests in associates are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. As disclosed
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
carrying value of the Group's interests in associates
exceeded the market value of the Group’s holding therein
as at 31 March 2018 and the management performed
impairment assessment on whether the estimated
recoverable amounts exceed the carrying amounts of
the interests in associates. The recoverable amounts of
the Group's interests in associates are determined by
value in use calculations based on the present value of
the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from
the investments. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
an impairment loss of HK$46,767,000 was recognised in
profit or loss.

HMINER B MR EIPIREE - REE AR ZEE B R
BAAARER  BEARELAZRUER BESEEGBEQR
ZERmEHEMEEKE - BIER S BT R M 520 AT
B EEERBEARIZERZEHERS BEXEM
FEEN T N\F=A=t—BzmE meEEESH
REERARZERZ AT RE RSB BREEETT
MERE - BEEERBMEARZERZAIKESEIR
RERBEENEZENRERYEL 2Bt ARKEDR
EEBEX BE_ZT-N\F=RA=+—RHILFE  BEEBE
#146,767,000/8 TR B AR ©

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs and
assumptions used by management in their estimation
of recoverable amounts, including expected future
cash flows arise from dividends to be received from
the interests in associates and the expected proceeds
from the ultimate disposal of the investment.
AEERENAGAIRESERARAZEERGAK
BERERZAEN - S8RFENEE QR 2
ZIRBELEZAMARASRE UREKHERE
Z RIS 5RIR -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Hth &
BRARESAHEMENAK - KA DHE
HRRFRANEN - BT REFAMBRE
RBAE L BE R -

BEMHGAMBEBRRNBERALNREELME
A BT ZFEMERERETATEAN
BB ©
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

o HEEEMRASHBRRNREMEREN
SRt MAERREN RN -

e HEFHARBECLITERNIAE T
HaEm o IRBAMENMERE - ER
EFAEEERXBERABENEANTHEE
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Mak Chun Bon.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29 June 2018

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

relEmRkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$ 000
Htaz FET FET
Revenue WA 5 1,150,672 85,792
Cost of sales SHER A (1,093,280) (17,027)
Gross profit EH 57,392 68,765
Other income Hapg A 7 40,924 16,773
Other gains and losses and FL A Uk BB 1R A R Bt B =2
other expenses 8 255,673 2,311,207
Distribution and selling costs 88 M SHE R A (15,732) (15,255)
Administrative expenses THEX (214,854) (135,794)
Finance costs M5B 9 (424,378) (247,417)
Share of results of associates e N - (19,627) (19,488)
Share of results of a joint venture  E{h—RIALDEES (8,463) (13,764)
(Loss) profit before tax BB AT (B8 ) & F (329,065) 1,965,027
Income tax expense TSz i 10 (168,770) (742,872)
(Loss) profit for the year FRN(EE)RF 11 (497,835) 1,222,155
Other comprehensive income Hih2EKA(F)
(expense)
Items that may be reclassified HERfe B HE B2
subsequently to profit or loss: HEH :
Exchange differences arising METINEIEFELE 2
on translation of foreign M =R
operations 357,891 (169,285)
Share of other comprehensive G E AR E M E
(expense) income of associates (B A (6,535) 7,181
Other comprehensive income FREMEEBA(FHER)
(expense] for the year 351,356 (162,104)
Total comprehensive (expense) FR2E(FAXZ)WKALLRE
income for the year (146,479) 1,060,051
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Consolidated Statement of Profitor Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

melEmRkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Kt FHERT THT
(Loss) profit for the UTALTEIEER
year attributable to: (BE)RF
Owners of the Company RKATIEB A (502,839) 1,220,221
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR i 2R 5,004 1,934
(497,835) 1,222,155
Total comprehensive (expense) IAFATEIEZE
income attributable to: GEIL Nt
Owners of the Company RATHEB A (155,944) 1,060,498
Non-controlling interests FEFER R & 9,465 (447)
(146,479) 1,060,051
(Loss) earnings per share - basic &R (EE)HEH —EAX 14 HK$(0.05)7% 5T HK$0.138 7T

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2018 R=ZZ—N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—tF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Htat FHET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - MBI NERE 15 48,425 50,493
Prepaid lease payments FAREERRK 16 33,785 35,288
Investment properties LB 17 10,360,347 9,445,175
Intangible assets mIEE 18 14,879 17,034
Goodwill Bl 19 14,152 =
Interests in associates RN 20 550,197 601,265
Interest in a joint venture R—REaEtEs R 21 - =
Amount due from a joint venture eI —FE& &b ERIA 21 - 31,345
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 22 169,705 193,388
Club debentures SHES 5,320 5,320
Deposits for acquisition of W EMHX 2 7] &
investment properties 39 88,973 2,770
Deposits for acquisition of W BRI
interests in investments 40 37,175 -
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIIBE = 33 32 32
11,322,990 10,382,110
CURRENT ASSETS RBAEE
Prepaid lease payments FAREERRK 16 4,392 3,227
Inventories FE 309 228
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 22 75,780 -
Properties held for sale BEEE S 23 96,761 1,132,151
Trade and other receivables and B 5 R CE R R IE &
prepayments T FRIE 24 65,696 387,425
Deposits for acquisition of WEREER R ®
interests in investments 40 260,616 237,378
Short-term loans receivable JEBE HRE X 25 57,000 57,000
Amounts due from associates JIE Wi Bt 2 R R FNIR 26 - 46,511
Investments held for trading BIEEBRE 27 81,000 48,909
Restricted bank deposit SRR HIRITF R 28 31,708 36,908
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KA 28 430,655 103,957
1,103,917 2,053,694
Assets classified as held for sale DERAFBIEHEEE 29 196,142 -
1,300,059 2,053,694
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2018 R=ZZ—N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—ZE2-N\EF —E—+F
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
B &t FExT FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAth BT RUIE R IEET B A 30 304,157 420,542
Deposits received in advance BUET & 31 - 991,970
Tax payable FERT R IE 91,086 56,371
Borrowings - due within one year  f&3— —FREZ|H 32 728,672 375,854
1,123,915 1,844,737
Liabilities classified as held for sale DAAFEHEZ BB 29 121,036 =
1,244,951 1,844,737
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 55,108 208,957
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELAERRBERE
LIABILITIES 11,378,098 10,591,067
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXRGHE
Share capital f& A 34 2,059,638 2,059,638
Share premium and reserves 1D E & 2,767,120 2,923,064
Equity attributable to owners of RARER AELER
the Company 4,826,758 4,982,702
Non-controlling interests eI IR M R 51,983 43,192
TOTAL EQUITY SR 4,878,741 5,025,894
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEME
Borrowings - due after one year B3 ——F & 2H 32 4,995,225 4,234,080
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFETBE FE 33 1,504,132 1,331,093
6,499,357 5,565,173
11,378,098 10,591,067

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 190 were EEEERT-\FERAZTNBIERE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on #4752 190E Y5 AME®RE - HIATALR

29 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: x5= .
Dr. Yap Allan Mr. Heung Pik Lun, Edmond
9k & fR e
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
] EBEF

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GaRRREE

Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EARERAER
Currency Capital Non-
Share Share  Contributed translation  redemption Other  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium surplus reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
BE  RVEE  EHER SMRERE SARERE  HeRE  REER it FERER  ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEL TR TR L TR TR T TR TR
[note a] [note b/
(Wita) (Hith)
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"5MA-A 112,37 2,390,935 8,941 85,795 592 (313,206) 63835 2,923,382 812,684 3,736,066
Profit for the year ERh| = = = = - - 12202 1220221 1936 1,222,155
Other comprehensive EREHRE(RR)
(expense] income for WA
the year = = = (166,904) = 7181 = (159,723) (2,381) (162,104)
Total comprehensive ER2EFER)WA
(expense) income for &8
the year = = = (166,904) - 7181 1,220,221 1,060,498 (647) 1,060,051
lssueofshares G B89 4783 - - : . - LB - LI
Bonus issue BITAR 1029819 (1,029,819) - - - - - - - -
Transactions costs EIRORRERA
attributable toissue of  EERBEA
shares and scrip share - 26,332) = S - S S 26,332) S 26,332)
Dividend recognisedas ~ EERADRLRE
distribution 18,476 2,7 = = = = (151,701) (110,454) = (110,454)
Dividend paid to non- BRFERRERRS
controlling interests S = = S = = = = (2.472) [2,472)
Acquisition of additional  JEEMBAREIMER
interest in subsidiaries - - - - - 11893 - 11,893 (766,573)  [754,680)
At 31 March 2017 RoB-tF
=A=t-A 2,059,638 1582298 8,941 (81,109) 592 (294,132) 1,706,874 4,982,702 43192 5,025,894
(Loss) profit for the year &R (1R &H - - - - - - (02839 [502,839) 5006 (497,830)
Other comprehensive income EREM 2EMRA
(expense] for (%)
the year - - - 353,430 = (6,535 = 346,895 4461 351,356
Total comprehensive income FRZ AR (Bx)
[expense] for &5
the year - - - 353,430 = (6,535) (502,839) (155,944) 9,465 (146,479)
Dividend paid to non- ERFERERRE
controlling interests = = S = = S = = (2,536) [2,536)
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WERHBAR
note 36/a)) (it 36(e)) = = = = - - - - 1,862 1,862
31 March 2018 HoB-\E
=A=+-A 2,009,638 1582298 8,941 272321 592 (300,667) 1,206,035 4,826,758 51983 4878741
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

Notes:

(a]  The contributed surplus of the Group at the end of reporting period
represented:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the credit arising from the transfer of the share premium account
of the Company as at 20 February 1998 and 19 February 2003 to
the contributed surplus account of the Company;

the credit arising from the reduction of the nominal value of the
shares of the Company in 1999, 2003, 2009 and 2011; and

a balance as reduced by amounts transferred to the accumulated
losses or retained profits of the Group as at 31 January 2000, 31
January 2001, 20 March 2003, 31 March 2005, 28 March 2013, 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2016.

[b]  The other reserves of the Group at the end of reporting period mainly
represented:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the difference between the consideration paid for the acquisition
of additional equity interests in Best Smooth International Limited
and its subsidiaries and the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests acquired amounting to HK$251,561,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2011;

the share of net asset value of an associate transferred from a
non-wholly owned subsidiary to another wholly owned subsidiary
upon transfer of interest in an associate between subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2011;

the difference between the carrying amount of the 41% and 8%
interests transferred and the consideration received respectively
in relation to the disposal of partial equity interests in China Good
Investments Limited ("China Good”] without losing control during
the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2013;

the difference between the consideration paid for acquisition of
additional equity interest in China Good and its subsidiary and
the carrying amount of the non-controlling interest acquired
amounting to HK$11,893,000 during the year ended 31 March
2017; and

the share of the currency translation reserve and investment
revaluation reserve of the Group's associates.
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(a)

(b)

AEBERBHRBRZ EFRHBIE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ARAAR—NAANE-_A-_+tBER-_TE=
FZATIBBRDEEREEETAQGZ
BRBREMEE ZER

R—AANF ZTZT=F ZTTAFK
—E——FHRADRRNEBEREEZE
R &

MR EREAERNR _EEEF—H=+—
A 24— A=+—0 —_TT=F
—A-t+RA - ZFETHRF=ZA=+—H8 =
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ERRERBEN 2 REAEEE -

ARERPRAR HFEFEERE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

RBE_ZE——F=A=+—HLFE " #
W B IEE R AR AR & E K E QBRI
BENRERCWEIFERESREE =
¥8251,561,000/8 7T :

RBE-ZT——F=RA=+—HLFE W
BARHEE M E AR ERRH I
2EWNBARERES —HE2EMNBARZ
FEAE—REEE & AR EEFE

RBE-_T——FR-ZF—Z=F=ZA=+—
BIEFE  #RIEELEEHENBRTE
ETFEBREERAR(FEN DI REDE
B2 %R8% IR 2 REED BIHEE WA E
ZEE

RBE_ZE—tF=RA=+—HLFE #
WeE R R E KB A R 2 BN R 2 R
BEMKBIFERES CREEZHNER
311,893,000 7T : &

RIEAEEBRE AT ZEL FHERREER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-.r\/\iﬁﬁ/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Dividend income from investments held
for trading
Finance costs
Other transaction costs on issue
of other borrowings

Early repayment fee on other borrowing

Gain on disposal of a joint venture

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on fair value changes upon
transfer of properties under
development for sale to investment
properties

Gain on fair value changes on
investment properties

Loss on fair value changes on
investments held for trading

Impairment loss on properties
held for sale

Impairment loss on goodwill arising from

acquisition of subsidiaries
Impairment loss on interests in
associates
Written off of a loan to an associate
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investment
Impairment loss on amount
due from a joint venture
Impairment loss on
club debentures
Share of results of associates
Share of results of a joint venture
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

NOTES
Htat

TS

PR (B8 ) & A

FRYSEEL 2 AR
AW A
BIEEEREZIRBMA

BHER
FITEMERZEBRBHA

HifER 2 RAEEER
HE-—RashEzka
HENE - B kb K

MEERRTNENRERE
nER 2 AFERBIGE

REYWEZ A FEZS WA

RERERBZATEES
8
BEHENF ZRERR

WEHRBARMEL 2 BB Z
REEE
RS AR et 2 RIE R

LN €
AHEERE ZRERE

R —HaELEFBZRE
BB
SERCRERR

g NTE S
EE—HaEbXERA
B EAESE

mE - BERRBNE

BNEENRED

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
(329,065) 1,965,027
(40,213) (15,960)
(530) (674)
424,378 247 417
9,425 =
39,683 -
(43,944) =
(42) (445)

- (2,732,380
(150,106) (229,217)
7,857 1,558

- 265,136

- 115,578
46,767 70,281
5,000 -
3,553 -

- 17,865

- 700

19,627 19,488
8,463 13,764
2,155 2,155
8,869 8,459
3,334 572
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

TERENER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tfF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Hrat TR FHET
Operating cash flows before RitEEESEH
movements in working capital REBEERE 15,211 (250,676)
Increase in inventories FEIEM (81) (26)
Increase in properties under FERERYELN
development for sale - (12,143)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other 25 R E b B IE K B[ 518
receivables and prepayments R (1) 130,689 (81,659)
(Increase) decrease in investments FHEEEREGEM) R
held for trading (39,948) 2,592
Increase in other payables and accruals — Ef FEAT B & FEET 2 AL N 18,343 351,203
Increase in deposits received in advance FEUET &0 - 118,223
Decrease (increase) in restricted X IR HIRAT AR A (32 0)
bank balances 5,200 (17,798)
Cash generated from operations REXBEEZRS 129,414 109,716
Income tax paid BRMAEHR (18,397) (2,351)
Land appreciation tax (‘LAT") paid B R ER ([ T3 IEER ) (44,737) =
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBEEZREFHE
ACTIVITIES 66,280 107,365
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXE
Interest received Wze F1.8 1,624 3,630
Dividend received Waz i 8 530 674
Advance of short-term loans receivable FEAEHIE B K - (27,000
Repayment from associates REBENBEERAE 41,511 =
Repayment of short-term loans EEEUIEHER
receivable - 42,084
Purchase of investment properties BEREME - (217,682
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME  HERRE
equipment (580) (4,393)
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture ﬁ%*FﬁA%ﬁ\%ZFﬁH%@E 91,497 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERBEZ
plant and equipment PG IE 42 756
Advance to an associate BN R DT - (45,466)
Advance to a joint venture B-—MEE X (24,671) =
Deposits made for acquisition of WEREME I ®
investment properties 39 (108,626) (2,833)
Deposits made for acquisition of WiERERS 2T
interests in investments (35,278) (241,978)
Acquisition of assets through BRNENBRRAIMEEE
acquisition of subsidiaries 35 - (190,348]
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEKT B A A 36 (15,196) (1,262,726)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BREXBBRA RS FHE
ACTIVITIES (49,147) (1,945,282)
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —t
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Hrat TR FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITREFZ S F0R 1,465,059 369,320
Proceeds from loan notes EREBRZERUE - 1,400,000
Proceeds from other borrowings HA g2 TSR0 1,667,022 854,661
Repayments of bank borrowings Ei RITHER (1,397,897) (57,877)
Repayments of other borrowings EEEMER (976,541) (747,768)
Other transaction costs paid on issue ~ BRETEMERZ
of other borrowings AR BAA (9,425) -
Interest paid ERAE (423,076) (214,460
Early repayment fee paid on TREMERZRAIERER
other borrowing (39,683)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT 2 PRSUE - 1,123,715
Share issue expenses RDEEITHY - (26,332)
Dividend paid BRI E - (110.454)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests B FFEAEREAE (2,536) (2,472)
Acquisition of additional interest in WEEH B A Rl MER R
subsidiaries and repurchase of amount BB B SF R AU 55 2 3K
due to the non-controlling interest - (700,000)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEXBELE RS FHE
ACTIVITIES 282,923 1,888,333
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND Re kIR EMEIE R EINFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 300,056 50,416
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNzReRREEERA
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 103,957 59,837
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EX&ZH &
CHANGES 26,642 (6,296)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZHE R
OF THE YEAR, represented by bank iz~ (EAH
balances and cash BRITEHRRERR 430,655 103,957
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September
1991 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”]. The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the address of the principal place of business
of the Company is Unit 703, 7/F, 1063 King's Road, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

The Company is engaged in trading of securities and investment
holding. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture are set out in notes 49, 20 and 21

respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current year:
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKAS") 7
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR I EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) [Continued]

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or
future cash flows will be included in cash flows from financing

activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; [(ii] changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii] the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(iv] changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 44. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 44, the application of these amendments
has had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Eﬁ?%ﬂtﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ ([E&M
B E R ) FET RIBRT AR (E)

BAGERETR (BT HE
s

AEBERAFEHRERZETR © %
ERIARZRERBIFHIE - UWEMBHRE
ZEREAFEREETDMSIR RS
£ BREASRIFBEE - I ZE
AIANER  BEEMEECHRSAREERK
HERARBESREF ST AREESH 2R
TRER ERAFREFHCREEZE
F o

RHR - RETABRNARE TS
b IRERSREZ B (1EEHE
£ YUY 2 7 S A S 2 4 B 2
B (i BES 2 A (v AT

BRZEREE RV EARGEH 2 EREAR
BfeE4s - RIBERT A ZBRIFHZRE
AEELERE 2 LLBER - Rz
BIMREIN  BRARFEIIALEHARE
B2 mRELTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE ISR M EE
For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) [Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Hong Kong (International
Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee)
Interpretations
("HK (IFRIC] - Int"] 22

HKI(IFRIC) - Int 23

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

ERAEEMBRELEN(EFEY
B|EER )T RAEFT A (&)

CEMAEMRERZEEHHRE
ZRIHET RAERT A

AEBEYWEEFEBIATEBEMEFERE
B2 RIRER B A B E A

BAMBRSENESE HHTA
FEPBRELNF 15 FRAORERABET

EAMBREERF 165 B
EAYBREENE SR RREH
EE(ERHBRERE IMEXFRBMANRE
REQ)-REB(FH

(BB ERERE

ZEg)-%E))

F20%

EE(EREBRERE FEREEZTRER
REQ)-RBEIHR

ERMBREEE DROAERHINTHZ

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification

and

measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,

general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for

financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the Group

are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

EREEMBRELEN(EEY
B E R ) FET RIBRT AR (E)

FRMBHREENEIRIMBELTA ]

BEVMBEREEAFIHRIENBEEE
MBalE  —REPSFTRESERAE
ZHREA R EEEZRERE

BARBEBIBEEMBRELERFEIR
ZEBRE

s EBEAMBHRESEMFIRBLEANZ
A R 15 B E R AR K
AHAFEAE - LERE - AEER
RAMREREZEBRAFEZE
BRE - URAKNREREE/XN
AERAREBERENEZEBERE
— RN ER G I RIR 8 SH A A&
B - UEERBURDENRSRER
HEMBEEZ XBEAFEZEH
TA  URENGEFRSINEEBBE
EZREREE/INAEIREER
Tz MBZBEBIA  —RIRAR
NHEFIRILET A2 EBA (1R
RNHEFIRLEF AR ZEEA D2
TAFE - FiBHRMERMEERER
SERTHIRIRAFERE - M4 RIE
BEMBEREERFN - BB
AR E M EERE b2 R AZ
BARE (WIFIEREE) 2EBRAF
E2E - M—RIABFRBWARERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 2 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk

management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of the

Company anticipate the following potential impact on initial
application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Debt instruments classified as loan receivables carried
at amortised cost as disclosed in notes 24 and 25
respectively: these are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost upon the application of HKFRS 9;

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at cost less impairment as disclosed
in note 22: these securities qualified for designation
as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the
Group plans not to elect the option for designating these
securities to be measured at FVTOCI and will measure
these securities at fair value with subsequent fair value
gains or losses to be recognised in profit or loss. Upon
initial application of HKFRS 9, fair value changes related
to these securities, representing the differences between
cost less impairment and fair value would be adjusted to
retained profits as at 1 April 2018;
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) [Continued]

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” [Continued)

Classification and measurement: (Continued)

J Distressed debt assets classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in note
22: these distressed debt assets did not satisfy the
contractual cash flow characteristics test and therefore
will be measured subsequently at fair value with fair value
gains or losses to be recognised in profit or loss instead
of other comprehensive income under HKFRS 9. On initial
application of HKFRS 9, investment revaluation reserve
relating to these distressed debt assets subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss will be

transferred to retained earnings as at 1 April 2018; and

. All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are

currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if
the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group,
the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by Group as at 1 April 2018 would be increased as compared
to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly
attributable to expected credit losses provision on trade and
other receivables, available-for-sale investments and short-
term loans receivable. Such further impairment recognised
under expected credit loss model would reduce the opening
retained profits at 1 April 2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) [Continued]

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 "Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the

related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard

introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s] with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as]
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing

application guidance.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

Eﬁ?%ﬂtﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ ([E&M
B E R ) F T RIBRT AR (E)

HRMB®RE
5 |

BREVBHRELERNE1RERMALEL T
—EE-—NEEER - BESTERPAHOK
BmARR - BEM B RS ERE 1SRN E
MERARIRITZWAERES - BFES
SEIEANE 18 (WAL - FESFERE

5% [REAW I RIEBERE -

EHEIRIEFEN

EREVBRELEYNF1FOZORANTY
—EERERERBAARE TP EEA
AEMIMEHEE  LRREBERAR
BMZEERAMRBMESHLIE - AR
3 RS AERBMAN AL

\n

A

#

D BRI REFETHAR
s F_X: BHANPZENEE

<

s F=H:@ EBEEXRZER
s FENF: BREEBIEZALNT

MWERREE
s FhF: REBEKEORETH(H
FhULE ) FER WA

REBEBMBREELF 155 EEEEE
X 4B R FERIA - EDE@%EEZ’JE
EHREZEMIRB Z (6 IS8 E
BPE - éi’iﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁ,ﬁw%w%ﬁaﬁﬁﬁ
RIER 2 BRIZTTEMAERIEZ 355
s BB ELERF SfEIEF‘
LR

RZBE—RF - BRSHMASEMEE
B HEEAFE 155 285 - RAARR
AENRME EFARREZEEREME
ZER%ES -



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) [Continued]

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” [Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective

reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term

leases and leases of low value assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) [Continued]

HKFRS 16 “Leases” [Continued]

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be

presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement
and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding

underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either

as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) [Continued]

HKFRS 16 “Leases” [Continued]

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$5,103,000 as disclosed in note 38.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they

qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as

indicated above.

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of Investment
Property”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by observable evidence that a change
in use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that
situations other than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence
a change in use, and that a change in use is possible for
properties under construction. For example, change in use for
transfer from properties under development for sale in the
ordinary course of business to investment properties could be
evidenced by inception of an operating lease to another party.
Currently, the Group accounts for such transfer only upon
commencement of an operating lease.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments will result in early recognition of such
transfers on the Group's consolidated financial statements
in future periods should there be a change in use of any of its
properties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) [Continued]

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of Investment
Property” (Continued)]

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
above, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange [the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance ("CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of

Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted] in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’'s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation

technique equals the transaction price.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-

controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”

and HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits” respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below): and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree [if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests” proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not

give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of business (see
the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units] that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes

and not larger than an operating segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Goodwill [Continued]

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units]. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent period.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal (or any of the cash-
generating unit within group of cash-generating units in which
the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associates and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is

not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Investments in associates and a joint venture
[Continued]

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a
joint venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting under the
equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’'s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held
by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment
in the associate or joint venture], the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’'s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Investments in associates and a joint venture
[Continued]

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal] with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment] upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate or joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Investments in associates and a joint venture
[Continued]

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or a joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or a joint venture

that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed

sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after

the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups] classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have

been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from water supply operations is recognised when

goods are delivered.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the
properties are delivered to the buyers, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers on sale of
properties prior to this stage are included in current liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time apportionment basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating lease is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

included in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which

they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.

If there is a transfer from properties under development for
sales or properties held for sales to investment properties
carried at fair value, any difference between the fair value of the
properties as at the date of transfer and their previous carrying

amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-Lline

basis over the term of the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in

the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire property
is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments] are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial

recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Leasing (Continued]
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as

if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group [i.e. Hong Kong dollars]) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of currency translation reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes
and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them

to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interests in associates and a joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the

investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

BEXEHHEGE)

BiE(4E)

ELEHRBERBEZANNB AR ZRE
REERBRAELENEREM I 2R
AR R B = BE T BERR. - MEAN SR 8] m] 2 5
BEEADRRHEEZEAAERLNARL
2R @ 2 IEMBRSN © B FIRE RS
B2 R HR R RS Z R T A A 2 IR IR IR
BE BEARELRHERTGNIAS)
PR B iy 22 3R ) 28 0 TR A T A 7T 86 SR B
Hﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬁl‘u °

EEHAEE < REER BHRARRE -
A5 R BE A B S e AR T A [ 18 2
A0 B EBER R o

BEHMBEENBENRERBERARE
BHIELE FERBZRE(RBER) &
BHERABEESEREESRBMBERA M
KEH o

BERBREREEZFERRIZBASE
EAEHRTARBRMRM O K ETEER
ERBEREEZIRFRER

AEEAAFERAGEZREMEZE
ERBABIREERBEER - ZFWE
ZEREEREEBFEE2HKE - BRIFR
RILEERER o WIKEWMER T
E - WASERBERERAMIEEBHEHN
MREMEBAMLNY NS EENZE 2 EB
BAFE - AIBRREIWEE °



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Club debentures

Club debentures are measured at cost less any impairment
losses.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as

their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives [see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

below].

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are classified under current assets.
They are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost relating to the development of properties, comprising
payment for land cost and development costs, are included
in properties held for sale until such time when they are
completed. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less all anticipated costs to be incurred in

marketing and selling.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
[Continued]

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit] for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable]
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal [if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

BEXETHHEE)

BEEREBREERME(E)

AIYE 2 BT A PR SEE A R A E
BERzBEE - R HEREER @ b5t
AR E M E R R IR 5 55
MEEIEE(RBRSELEM) ZFER
@ (A ARRRERE M AR EAEHFE)
A ZBRTEATREIR K - BRIREHIR(E -

WMEE(KREELEN) 2 KRE SR
AHEREREE  MEE(HREELE
)2 FEESHREEATKEEHE - o
FORERRE - &5t D R E R R ARME
EREEREEGER) - RREZ
NASEEENREEMELIIDEEE
EE - BERHAENSRLEERE
FEREERA(NAIE)  HEREE
(WA 8 RBZFNERE - ERTTH
REEEZREBERBBERLAIDEEZ
BUHEMEE - MEBESSNIERE

=7
o °©

B

WREBEERERD  EE(HRSE
BN REEREEEGER 2 A
WO e HEENREETSFELR
FRETFRIENEE(SREELEN)
EREFREBEMEE REE - RE
EEED e RN ERTER -

Annual Report 2017/2018 %k

87



88

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss ["FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale ("AFS”) financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets [(Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial asset held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

e on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 43c.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associates, amount due from a joint venture, short-term loans
receivable, restricted bank deposit and bank balances and
cash] are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting

policy on impairment of financial assets below].

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b] held-to-maturity investments or (c]
financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
except for unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS
debt instruments relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial

assets below].

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

BEXEHHEGE)

BT E(Z)
BBEEE)
B R el IE

BN YR IR AR A B RE 5 AT 7 E 1N 3R i
I R BT IZMEZITEMBEE - 1
BRERE  BERREEFIR(EEES
NEAREARIR - YRR & R EIRIA - JE
W—HAEELEFNR  BREMER X
BREIRITERRIBITEREIRE) L #H
XA A B R A EOX R E R 2 BB ERE
BARB2HETXABMBEERELZ
SRR -

AHEEMBEE

AHEEMEEEDRE R HEERT
BE D R ERRERFIE - blFEEH
RES ()RR FEF R T A B2 5
BEZHFITETIR -

BRARBER SERTEAFEZIFLTRERE
Sh - REEAFOBERAHEEMBEE
WHERT IS E B2 RAREEESN B
BPRBRATENE - BANSBABEZ
AHEEEF TARBERMNXAFHEE
BRHEZSHURAHEERAREZ
BRERBERER - IHHEERTTAEZ K
BEARE B S Z M R B
HER - AT EM B B ERRE A Kb &
PREMEEPARER - XRIREE-RF
BT R - BEREELKBERTRE -
AR E EA R R R Z R5HRER
BEEFSBERR(F2HTXA#EY
BEERBEZEFTRER)



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Financial instruments [Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets (Continued]

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below].

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)]

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’'s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of one to two months, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)]

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to

an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Financial instruments (Continued]
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts] through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is

recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including other payables and borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Continued]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,

are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee

period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued]

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
[Continued)]

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group's investment property
portfolios and concluded certain of the investment properties
located in the People’'s Republic of China (the "PRC") of
carrying amount with HK$10,360,347,000 at 31 March 2018
(2017: HK$9,258,775,000) are held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors
of the Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of such investment properties are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised deferred taxes on LAT in respect of
changes in fair value of such investment properties but has
recognised deferred tax on Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT") on the
assumption that these investment properties will be recovered

through use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued]

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. The
valuation of investment properties requires the application
of significant judgement and estimation in determining the
appropriate valuation methodology to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs. The valuation is
sensitive to underlying assumptions applied by the valuers such
as market comparable used and the capitalisation rate which

can have a significant impact to the valuation.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumptions used in the valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions and current development of the investment
properties. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties
and the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As
at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of investment properties
is HK$10,360,347,000 (2017: HK$9,445,175,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued]

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of distressed debt assets classified as
available-for-sale investments

The distressed assets are measured at fair value determined
with reference to discounted cash flow model. The key
unobservable inputs used by the management in discounted
cash flows model included the expected recoverable amounts
of the distressed debt assets, discount rates reflect both
return requirements of the market and the risk inherent
in the investment and expected recovery date. Changes in
assumptions about these unobservable inputs could affect the
estimated fair value of the distressed debt assets. As at 31
March 2018, the carrying amount of distressed debt assets is
HK$200,947,000 (2017: HK$155,976,000].

Impairment review of properties held for sale
["PHS"]

In the impairment review of the Group’'s PHS, the Group takes
into consideration estimated net realisable value (e.g. future
selling prices less estimated costs of selling expenses] and
the properties presale agreements. Impairment is made if
the estimated net realisable value of the PHS is less than
the carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value of
PHS is less than expected as a result of change in market
condition, material write down may result. As at 31 March
2018, the carrying amount of PHS was HK$96,761,000 (2017:
HK$1,132,151,000). During the year ended 31 March 2018, no
impairment was recognised on PHS (2017: HK$265,136,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued]

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment review of interests in associates

Management regularly reviews the recoverable amount of
interests in associates. Determining whether impairment is
required involves the estimation of the recoverable amount
of the associates to which exceed the carrying amount of the

associates.

The recoverable amounts are determined by value in use
calculation which are based on the Group's share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from dividends to be received from the interests in associates
and the expected proceeds from the ultimate disposal of the
investment. Where the actual future cash flows are less than

expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of interest
in associates net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$141,416,000, amounted to HK$550,197,000. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, impairment of HK$46,767,000 (2017:

HK$70,281,000) was recognised on interests in associates.

Impairment review of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which intangible assets have been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The management
performed an impairment assessment on intangible assets and
no impairment loss was recognised for both years ended 31
March 2018 and 2017. As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount
of intangible assets was HK$14,879,000 (2017: HK$17,034,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued]

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment review of unlisted securities classified
as available-for-sale investments

Determining whether the unlisted securities classified as
available-for-sale investments are impaired requires an
estimation of the carrying amount of the unlisted securities.
The carrying amount of the available-for-sale investments may
be adjusted to reflect the revised estimated cash flows when
the Group reviews recoverable amount of the available-for-
sale investments. During the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017, no impairment was recognised on the unlisted securities

classified as available-for-sale investments.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of unlisted securities
classified as available-for-sale investments was HK$44,538,000
(2017: HK$37,412,000).

Impairment loss on short-term loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the short-
term loans receivable and amounts due from associates.
Appropriate impairment for estimated irrecoverable amount
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence

that the amount is not recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aged status
and the creditworthiness of each loans receivable. Specific
allowance is only made for the loans receivable with high
uncollectibility and is recognised on the difference between
the carrying amount of loans receivable and the present value
of estimated future cash flow discounted using the original
effective interest rate. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, loan to an associate
amounting to HK$5,000,000 (2017: nil) was written off.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REBEBFRAERAZITOAT
2018 2017
e AS: —E—+F
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FERT FHAT
Sales of properties MEHE 974,278 -
Rental income GEEA Y ON 129,604 57,899
Water supply business HIKFEF 46,790 27,893
1,150,672 85,792
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEH
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (i.e. RERDERDBRAFTGHREEEER
the executive directors] for the purposes of resource allocation FEEWMTER) 2R ENTEBHEM
and assessment of segment performance focuses on the types REEMRG 2 FRE
of goods or services provided.
Segment revenue and results DEWAREE
The Group's reportable and operating segment are as follows: AEBE A 2R EEEDENOT -
Trading of securities - Trading of investments held BHEER — REBRBEHNEER
for trading in Hong Kong BIEEEREA
and overseas
Property development, - Development, investment MEERE - - RHPERESE
investment and trading and sale of properties KERBEER R REKRIHEE
and provision of property )2 LA AR )
management services in HEEERE
the PRC and Hong Kong
Water supply - Provision of water supply oK — R BEREMEKR
in the PRC %
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BRI 2HERENEE D 2 AREW
AREEZ DI »

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)] 6.
Segment revenue and results (Continued)]

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment.

Property
development,
Trading of  investment Water
securities  and trading supply Consolidated
MIERRE -
EBHREE RBREREE ok e
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FHExT
For the year ended BE-_Z—N\&F
31 March 2018 =A=+—HLEE
REVENUE ON
Segment revenue PEEUA - 1,103,882 46,790 1,150,672
SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT 2% (E51E)%F (7,327) 112,175 19,128 123,976
Interest income B U A 40,213
Unallocated corporate ROBEERA
income 181
Unallocated corporate RABLEST N
expenses (228,957)
Exchange gain PE 5 e 199,366
Finance costs (note/ BB R (HaT) (424,378)
Impairment loss on REE AR Z =2
interests in associates REEE (46,767)
Impairment loss on AHHERE CREERE
available-for-sale
investments (3,553)
Written off of a loan to —EE g R B B2 M
an associate (5,000)
Gain on disposal of HE—fHa &b s
a joint venture 43,944
Share of results of i) NI E
associates (19,627)
Share of results of JE(R—FAEDEEE
ajoint venture (8,463)
Loss before tax R R Bl &S 18 (329,065)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION [Continued) 6. PEERE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DPEBAREE(E)
Property
development,
Trading of investment Water
securities  and trading supply Consolidated
MEER
FHREE RKRAEKEE oK e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAT FAT FAT FHET
For the year ended BE-Z—tF
31 March 2017 ZA=+—HLEE
REVENUE WA
Segment revenue DEKA - 57,899 27,893 85,792
SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT 238 (&518) %R (884]) 2,564,915 5,613 2,569,644
Interest income FE YA 15,960
Unallocated corporate RABEEFEWA
income 1,147
Unallocated corporate RAOMBESZH
expenses (142,883)
Exchange loss b 3 5 18 (110,026)
Finance costs (note/ M ER (M) (247,417)
Impairment loss on REERAZ R
interests in associates BEEE (70,281)
Impairment loss on Y —HaghENRIEAZ
amount due from BEEE
ajoint venture (17,865)
Share of results of RGBS A RIEE
associates (19.488)
Share of results of BiE—HEEREESA
a joint venture (13,764)
Profit before tax R 75 AT g A 1,965,027
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)]

Note: The Group allocated certain borrowings to the segment
liabilities without allocating the finance costs to segment
results as the chief operating decision maker did not
take into account of finance costs in the measurement of
segment results.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment (loss] profit represents (loss) profit incurred by each
segment without allocation of interest income, unallocated
corporate income, unallocated corporate expenses, exchange
gain (loss), finance costs, gain on disposal of a joint venture
impairment loss on interests in associates, impairment loss on
amount due from a joint venture, impairment loss on available-
for-sale investments, written off of a loan to an associate, share
of results of a joint venture and share of results of associates.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker (i.e. executive directors] for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION [Continued) 6. PEERE)
Segment assets and liabilities PEEERAE
Property
development,
Trading of  investment Water
securities  and trading supply Consolidated
MERR -
EHEE REREE oK wE
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FHET
At 31 March 2018 R=E—N\F
=A=+-—H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 100,083 11,056,034 134,862 11,290,979
Interests in associates N NI e T 550,197
Available-for-sale A ERE
investments 245,485
Short-term loans RN EIE R
receivable 57,000
Bank balances and cash R{T&HBEIRE 176
Deferred tax assets BB IEEE 32
Deposits for acquisition of WA ]
interests in investments 297,791
Deposit for acquisition of WK EWHE 2T S
investment properties 88,973
Other unallocated assets Hitt kDB EE 92,416
Consolidated assets HEBE 12,623,049
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities HEEAE 133,434 3,384,950 6,227 3,524,611
Borrowings &= 2,681,800
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTABE 1,504,132
Other unallocated HihRDEBE
liabilities 33,765
Consolidated liabilities meEaE 7,744,308
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued] 6. DEERE)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTEEEREEE)
Property
development,
Trading of investment Water
securities  and trading supply Consolidated
MEERE -
BHEE HREKEERE oK e
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHT FAT FHT FHT
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—tHF
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 161,352 10,740,703 114,115 11,016,170
Interests in associates NN 601,265
Amount due from a B —REERERIR
joint venture 31,345
Amounts due from FE U ES: & R R FRIE
associates 46,511
Available-for-sale AEHERE
investments 193,388
Short-term loans eSS HAE 2R
receivable 57,000
Bank balances and cash #R1T&BKRIES 78
Deferred tax assets EERIAE E 32
Deposits for acquisition of WIEKREREZ 25 S
interests in investments 237,378
Deposit for acquisition of UWEEREMEZ TS
investment properties 2,770
Other unallocated assets EHfhARkpDE&EE 249,867
Consolidated assets HEBE 12,435,804
LIABILITIES £ i
Segment liabilities HEEaLE 87,170 3,406,541 3938 3,497,649
Borrowings B 2,390,140
Deferred tax liabilities ~ JEEHIAAE 1,331,093
Other unallocated = N =
liabilities 191,028
Consolidated liabilities REAaflE 7,409,910
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

assets are allocated to reportable and operating segments
other than certain property, plant and equipment, interests
in associates, amount due from a joint venture, amounts
due from associates, deposits for acquisition of investment
properties, available-for-sale investments, short-term
loans receivable, deposits for acquisition of interests in
investments, deferred tax assets, certain other receivables

and prepayments and certain bank balances and cash; and

liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than unallocated other payables and
accruals, certain borrowings, tax payable and deferred tax

liabilities.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER(E)

Other segment information

Property
development,
Tradingof  investment Water
securities  and trading supply  Unallocated Consolidated
MERRE -
#5EE REREE itk OB )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

For the year ended HE-B-N\%

31 March 2018 ZA=t-HLEE

Amounts included in the measure s EHE(EB)HEHRPEEE
of segment (loss) profit and st A 28

segment assets

Additions to property, REME  BRRRE

plant and equipment - 33 78 469 580
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BBRREE WG

plant and equipment - - 42 - 42
Release of prepaid lease ENEENTED

payments - 2,778 556 - 3,334
Amortisation of intangible assets & & E#H - - 2,155 - 2,155
Loss on fair value changes on ~ H{EEEREZ ATEEHER

investments held for trading 7,857 - - - 7,857
Gain on fair value changes on REWF 2 A HEZSKR

investment properties - 150,106 - - 150,106
Depreciation of property, mE - BRREENE

plant and equipment - 855 4,709 3,305 8,869
Written off of a loan to —REE AREH M

an associate - - - 5,000 5,000
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)]

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Amounts included in the measure
of segment (loss) profit and

segment assets

Additions to property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Release of prepaid lease
payments

Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss on fair value changes on
investments held for trading

Gain on fair value changes upon
transfer of properties under
development for sale to
investment properties

Gain on fair value changes on
investment properties

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

BEZE-t&
ZR=t-ALFE

FENR(BR) NI BAE
et AZ &8

RENE  BERRE

HENE - BRRRE b

BNEENHEE

BVEEEH
BEEERECATEESEE

ERERRTDENREREY
252 APERHLS

BRNE 2 ATERDLE

0E  BELRENE

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

Trading of
securities

#rEE
HK$'000
TAL

1,558

6. TR
H

Property
development,
investment
and trading
NEERE
RELEE
HK$ 000
TER

1,061

2,732,380

229,217

1,106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

BHER(E)
fb o MEH (&)
Water

supply  Unallocated
ik ADE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET TR
- 3,342
445 -
572 -
2,155 -
4,862 2,491

Consolidated

wa
HK$'000
TAR

4,393

445

2,732,380

229,217

8,459
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)]
Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the
location of the property for property development, investment
and trading segment and the location of customers for other
segments, and information about its non-current assets by

geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from

DTEER(E)
it 15 2

IHERR RERBEEDBRRMENRE
R EMDBIREFAERE D A EE
REIMBER ZWA - LARIZE E I
BEEDZIFRBEEFMBIMAT ¢

Non-current assets

external customers [ﬂOT@]
REMBEF ZWA FRBEE
(Kr&t)
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-NE ZE—tF ZE-NFE Z—tF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHAT FET FHT
Hong Kong BB 5,273 4,359 568,623 801,870
PRC T 1,145,399 81,433 10,570,478 9,355,475
Overseas A - - 14,152 -
1,150,672 85,792 11,153,253 10,157,345
Note: Non-current assets excluded amount due from a joint Mt - ERHEETNAIERK AL
venture, available-for-sale investments and deferred tax RIE -~ A IHERE MEEFRIBEE -
assets.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2018, there was one customer
(2017: one customer) who is an independent third party to the
Group and accounted for over 10% of total revenue with revenue
of HK$175,576,000 (2017: HK$20,885,000) related to property
development, investment and trading segment (2017: water

supply segment].

FRTERFZEHR

BE_Z—)\EZAZ+—ALFE Y
¥R REARBEHSHE(ZE—LF:
HARDE)F—B(ZT—LF: —%)
BASEBLE= F2EFERKAS
10% @ BREEW A A175,576,0008 T (==
—-+4 :20,885,000/7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HigA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERT FET
Interest income on T3 & B 2 FBIA

- bank deposits —RITFER 1,436 432
- short-term loans receivable —EWEHER 6,850 7,656
— available-for-sale investments — A HEERE 31,739 7,664
- others —Hfb 188 208
40,213 15,960

Dividend income from investments KEBEESREZREWA
eld for trading 530 674
Others EHi 181 139
40,924 16,773

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT



OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND OTHER 8.

Hitm REEUAR MRS

EXPENSES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
Other gains and losses H bz R EE
Gain on fair value changes upon HEEERPYE
transfer of properties under BRI EER
development for sale to investment  AFEE LS
properties - 2,732,380
Gain on fair value changes on REWFE 2 X THEEE W
investment properties (note 17) (HizE17) 150,106 229,217
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREEZKE
plant and equipment 42 445
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HeEhE W
[note 21) (KizE21) 43,944 -
Exchange gain (loss) i 5 s (&518) 199,366 (110,026)
Loss on fair value changes on RIEEEREZATELZYERE
investments held for trading (7,857) (1,558)
Others EHAth - 758
385,601 2,851,216
Other expenses Hbp %
Other transaction costs on issue of BITHMERZ MR KA
other borrowings (9,425) -
Early repayment fee on other HEMERZIRRERER
borrowing (39,683) =
Other transaction costs on issue BITEREE 2 KR HKA
of loan notes - (70,449)
Impairment loss on properties FIFHEME ORERRE
held for sale - (265,136)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At #4ERE 2 FEEE
investment (note 22) (KizE22) (3,553) -
Impairment loss on goodwill arising  WEHBARIFMEELEZEEY
from acquisition of subsidiaries BB B (H736)
[note 36) - (115,578)
Impairment loss on interests in RIS R R 2 R 2 RERER
associates (note 20) (Kizt20) (46,767) (70,281)
Impairment loss on amount B —F&EhERIEBEZ
due from a joint venture VERIEYSEi= - (17,865)
Written off of a loan to an associate ~ —REEE R RIE R 2 M (5,000) =
Impairment loss on club debentures  &FT{ES 2 FEEE - (700)
Loss arising from financial quarantee MEERARAELZER
contracts (note 37) (K17237) (25,500) =
(129,928) (540,009)
255,673 2,311,207
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BMKEHR
2018 2017
—B-N\F —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT THT
Interest on bank and other HR1T R EADE T B
borrowings 424,378 278,784
Less: amounts capitalised in W RFEERTMEFTERL
properties under ZEH
development for sale - (31,367)
424,378 247,417
Borrowing cost capitalised in prior year arose from specific RBEFERFTERZERRARTIERE
borrowings. ERRMmELE -
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRIfEBiZ
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t 5
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Income tax expense comprises: FEHi HBHE -
Current tax: B EARIA -
PRC EIT B EPTISHL 54,965 2,396
PRC LAT AR B IR (E R 72,881 -
Deferred tax charge [note 33) RIERIAS W (F77733) 40,924 740,476
168,770 742,872
There was no estimated assessable profit of Hong Kong Profits {8 £F 2 15 8 2 N 1S B Mk 5t e AR A s

Tax for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax

rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE [Continued]

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, represented
by the excess of sales proceeds of properties over prescribed
direct costs. Prescribed direct costs are defined to include
costs of land, development and construction costs, as well as

10.

FREBH (42)

TR T IS ER BB RIZ AT EFE R
BOIBkMEE - Rt ESERE
MEHEWANEIRTEEERAR) ARE
THE30% 2 60%FEEHMZ T HIZET - 5
THERARER AR 2R REE
A REMBREEZRAKA 2R
BRBBELEBLBEIRAE  HEEFRE

certain costs relating to the property development. According ﬁf%ﬁ(iﬂﬂi"@ﬁ CRIEERRTHKES
to the State Administration of Taxation’s official circulars, LAT REAEWE -
shall be payable provisionally upon sales of the properties,
followed by final ascertainment of the gain at the completion of
the properties development.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FAMGEHRX P EESER R EMEEK
(loss) profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit mENBRETA (EE)RF 2 HRm
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: N
2018 2017
—B-N\F —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
(Loss) profit before tax B A (E518 ) s A (329,065) 1,965,027
Tax (credit) charge at applicable tax  #REMARH E25%
rate of 25% (2017: 25%) (note) (ZZ— % : 25%)
SHE 2 B (R ) ks (Afat) (82,266) 491,257
Tax effect of share of results of JEIGEE S AR B 2 ISR 2
associates 4,907 4,872
Tax effect of share of results of Bt —EeEhEREY
a joint venture Mgge 2,116 3,441
PRC LAT B - b IE(E R 72,881 -
Tax effect of PRC LAT A+ i IRE N 2 B R B (18,220) =
Tax effect of income not taxable for AN Z T &
tax purposes (19,423) (388)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BEHIBI Y 2 s &
for tax purposes 34,611 123,500
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRIERFIEFIE 2 HETE 174,164 120,190
Income tax expense for the year FRNFBR S 168,770 742,872
Note: The Group’'s major operating subsidiaries are located in the HiaF - AEBEZETZ2LEMBRAMRF

B ERR25% 2 FRIS TR o

PRC and accordingly, income tax rate of 25% is adopted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

11. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

1. FR(EE)ER

2018 2017
—EB-NF —tF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year has been FREE) RN TR0k
arrived at after charging (crediting): (5t A) N3 &IEELES :
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRA(BREEME) :
emoluments):
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 26,462 21,977
Retirement benefits scheme RIRRB A B AR
contributions 1,846 1,957
28,308 23,934
Auditor’'s remuneration ZEHE 4,352 3,859
Cost of inventories sold BEEGFERAN 1,093,280 17,027
Amortisation of intangible assets EREERE
(included in administrative (Bt ATTEFAX)
expenses) 2,155 2,155
Depreciation of property, M - W REREITE
plant and equipment 8,869 8,459
Release of prepaid lease payments FBAEEN KB D 3,334 572
Rental income under operating lease &&&FMAE N 28 EME
on investment properties less AW AR N
negligible outgoings (129,604) (57,899
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12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12. €% - {THARRESHM

EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration

(a) ES=HM

RBER EHRANRABHERIKEZ
FREERITHRAZGHHET :

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO,
is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TFET
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITESE
Yap, Allan [Chief Executive) ERG(7TBAEE)
Fees viakery - =
Other emoluments: B :
Salaries and other benefits Fre MEAMAEF 2,400 2,400
Retirement benefits scheme R FIFT B
contributions 18 18
2,418 2,418
Heung Pik Lun, Edmond mER
Fees wE - =
Other emoluments: HA NS -
Salaries and other benefits Hae MEMER 2,160 2,160
Retirement benefits scheme RRE A ET B R
contributions 18 18
2,178 2,178
Wu Guangsheng (appointed on ShBR=F—~FNA
14 September 2016) TIHBEERT)
Fees we - =
Other emoluments: HAobp & -
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 360 197
Retirement benefits scheme RIRE IR EI R
contributions 18 10
378 207
Sub-total /Net 4,974 4,803

ERFAIATEZT M T ERRKS
AAEEEH RN EERE M

The executive directors’” emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12. E% - TRERBRESHM(E)
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (Continued]

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)]

(a) EEHM(E)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FER FET
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE BIAFHTES
DIRECTORS
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva EiIESva
Fees we 100 88
Other emoluments: HEme :
Salaries and other benefits e REAREF - -
Retirement benefits scheme RIRTEFFT B R
contributions - -
100 88
Sin Chi Fai PR E
Fees we 80 72
Other emoluments: Huie :
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF - -
Retirement benefits scheme BRRTEMET B R
contributions - -
80 72
Poon Kwok Hing, Albert i [ B
Fees we 100 88
Other emoluments: B -
Salaries and other benefits e RHAEF - =
Retirement benefits scheme BB FIFTEI R
contributions - -
100 88
Wu Chun Wah (appointed on SRERE(R =T —F<A
30 June 2016) —tHEZXT)
Fees Fiakery 180 136
Other emoluments: HEe :
Salaries and other benefits e RHAEF - -
Retirement benefits scheme RIKE R B R
contributions - -
180 136
Sub-total NEt 460 384
Total &5 5,434 5,187

ERFAIBLIFNTEEZHE TR
RREETARRRESHIEHERSE 2

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.
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12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued]

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)]

12. E% - TRARRESHM(&E)

(a) EEHME)

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Total SEr
Directors’ fees R0 460 384
Other emoluments: HAE -
Salaries and other benefits He MEHMER 4,920 4,757
Retirement benefits scheme RIREF B
contributions 54 46
5,434 5,187
(b) Employees’ remuneration (b) {EEHM

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group included two directors (2017: two directors) for
the year ended 31 March 2018, whose emoluments are

included in (a) above. The aggregate emoluments of the

HE_Z-NF=ZA=+T—HIHF
B AEERfUKESHEALTEBRERE
EX(CZ—LF MEBEZR) ®KE
ZHEE RN EX(a) 2% - Htr=4

remaining three individuals are as follows: AT zBi&@maT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET TET
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 2,966 2,942

Retirement benefits scheme BIREF B

contributions 85 85
3,051 3,027
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R IR R I EE
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12. ES - TREBRESHM(E)
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (Continued]

(b) Employees’ remuneration [Continued)] (b) EEFM(E)

Number of employees

EEAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%7c%1,500,000% 7T 2 2
3 3
No inducement paid or payable to directors to join or upon RZMEFE  TERENKENES
joining the Group in both years and no directors waived any PNEASK I pN B AR R (A 2 42 R - TR
emoluments in both years. EEMEZMEFTEZEMBE -
13. DIVIDEND 13. RE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution ERBERADIRZES
during the year:
Nil (2017: 2016 final dividend T(ZE2—+tF: ZT—R"F
HK3 cents per share] REARR S FRR3AB(L) - 151,701
The 2016 final dividend paid in cash and in scrip shares UBERRERAEN Y —E—NEXRD
amounted to HK$110,454,000 and HK$41,247,000, respectively. A% B9 Bl A110,454,0003 7T & 41,247,000
For details of the scrip shares, please refer to the Company’s I o BERBBRMZEHE  B2EAA
circular dated 7 October 2016. FREHSA—T—NE+A+LHZBE -
No final dividend was proposed for the year ended 31 March TEs N8z —_E— \E=A=+—H
2018. IEFEZ RERE °
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14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 3R (EE) BT

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share RAAEA NEEFRER(ER)&BFTY
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BT8R E
data:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT THT

(Loss) profit for the year attributable AR EHAE ABREA

to owners of the Company (JE18) 5 A (502,839) 1,220,221
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
‘000 ‘000
B i
Number of shares: RADERE
Weighted average number of TR N8 E
ordinary shares 10,298,189 9,531,685
No diluted (loss) earnings per share has been presented as HAMEFEHERTEN L BELE
there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding for both B% » i E 25| SRR EEE (BB &F -
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥1% - HBERRHE

Furniture,
Plantand fixtures and Motor
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Vessel Total
A £E
BT HERRE SEL] RE W 3
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ThT TAL T T b AT
COST WA
At 1 April 2016 RZE—FmA-A 89,302 7,596 19,922 8,540 9,750 135,110
Currency realignment N A= (4,161) (526) (309) (129] = (5,125)
Additions NE - - 1,326 3,067 - 4393
Acquisition of subsidiaries fnote 36)  WEHBRR(H:23) - 3,505 818 39% - 4517
Disposals e = - (1,036) (3,831) = (4,867)
Write off s - = (7,039 (1,500) - (8,539
At 31 March 2017 RZF—t¥=A=1-H 85,141 10,575 13,482 6,941 9,750 125,489
Currency realignment HNER 6,811 1,035 701 269 - 8,816
Additions AE = = 580 = - 580
Acquisition of subsidiaries fnote 36) KB RR(#/F36) = = 2,284 = = 2,284
Disposals ik = = - (305) - (305)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=1—H 91,952 11,610 17,047 6,505 9,750 136,864
DEPRECIATION WERAME
At 1 April 2016 RZE-EmA-A 52175 5,259 14,802 7,789 2,221 82,246
Currency realignment HNEHE (1,908) (323) (289) (94) - (2,614)
Provided for the year Enf 4,168 1232 1514 895 650 8,459
Eliminated upon disposals HEREH - - (1,000 (3,556) - (4,556)
Eliminated upon write off R = - (7,039) (1,500] - (8,539)
At 31 March 2017 RZF—t5=A=1-H 54,435 6,168 7988 3,934 2871 74,996
Currency realignment NEaR 3522 650 520 187 - 4,879
Provided for the year ERE 4,234 835 2251 899 650 8,869
Eliminated upon disposals HERHE - - - (305) - (305)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=1—H 62,191 7,653 10,759 4315 35 88,439
CARRYING VALUE BEE
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=A=1—H 29,761 3,997 6,288 2,190 6,229 48,625
At 31 March 2017 S e e = 30,706 4,407 5,494 3,007 6,879 50,493
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.

[Continued]

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum.

Buildings Over the period of the leases or
2% - 5%

Plant and machinery 10% - 20%

Furniture, fixtures 10% - 33%

and equipment
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
Vessel 6.7%

The Group's buildings are situated on a piece of land in the PRC

with medium-term leases.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold lands
in the PRC held under medium-term land use rights.

M - BRERRE(E)

Bz - R RREEE TREGER
IATNERFTE o

BF BRI XF s
2%-5%

Hes kR 10%-20%

A -EKBER 10%-33%

B

B 20%-25%

fie 6.7%

AEEZEFCRPE-EFAROL
o o
BANEENR

AEBEZBNEENRERETBERES
HiERESAzHELH -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET

Analysed for reporting purposes as: 23BN MIEE DT :
Non-current asset FERBEE 33,785 35,288
Current asset MEEE 4,392 3.227
38,177 38,515
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BREWE
HK$ 000
FAET
FAIR VALUE NEAE
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RFMOA—H 181,560
Exchange realignment [E 5 7% (252,339)
Changes in fair value recognised RERERZATEES)
in profit or loss 229,217
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36/ W B B /B8 A R (W a36) 2,829,901
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of FHiBWIEN B A RWEEE (A:#35)
subsidiaries (note 35) 162,499
Transferred from properties under EHEEEPME
development for sale 6,076,655
Additions NE 217,682
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=A=+—H 9,445,175
Exchange realignment M 5 S B 916,335
Changes in fair value recognised RIERERZ AP EES
in profit or loss 150,106
Transferred from properties held for sale BEREHEWE 17,653
Transferred to assets held for sale (note 29) BEREHEEE(M729) (196,000)
Additions NE 27,078
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\F=A=1+—H 10,360,347

R AREE AR S SHEE RN IEER G
MFBZMEEZHY AREMENE
WERAAFEENXGE -

All of the Group’'s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are classified and accounted for as investment properties and

measured using the fair value model.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at
31 March 2018, 31 March 2017, the date of transfer from
properties under development for sale/properties held for sale
and the date of acquisition of subsidiaries have been arrived at
on the basis of valuations carried out on the respective dates
by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, for investment
properties located in Hong Kong, and Norton Appraisals
Holdings Limited, for investment properties located in the PRC,
independent qualified professional valuers. Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited and Norton Appraisals Holdings
Limited have appropriate qualifications and recent experience

in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong
and certain investment properties in the PRC is determined
by using direct comparison approach assuming sale of the
property interest in its existing state by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant

market, adjusted for various unobservable inputs.

The fair value of certain investment properties located in the
PRC is determined by using income capitalisation approach.
The income capitalisation approach is calculated by capitalising
the rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due

provision for any reversionary income potential.

17. REWE(E)

REER-Z-N\F=A=+—H —F
—tF=A=+—H BHFEZEEDTY
X/ BEHEDEEREARKBIBAR
AEAZREMELNTFEDNREBIAE
REXGEMXFANEZDER2F (G
NRBEZREMEMNS) R EBEKRF
BARAR(RUNTEZERENENS)
R&BBMMETZHEEE - XFaHE
HABRARAREHERTEER QAR
BRBEROHFHEELREDEZL

Wi E T ATEE - W BELS
ERER/BRTAE -

NREBBEZREMERTEETREME
ZRFETDRBERLBOENS ZHMAT
SRS A FLLERZ HER HRBRRIAY
ERNHEMERRMET - ARZED
AERGABRETHAE -

fRFEzETRENEZ A FETIHRA
WABTRMOEETE - WMABREEBE
REAHEPEMz HEWABFTEARNER
RAEMBEERRAELEE BRETH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES [Continued) 17. REYHE(E)
All of the investment properties are categorised into Level 3 of FMBEREMEADEAE=QAFERE
the fair value hierarchy and below is a table which presents the & TRIREBATAERGABIE -

significant unobservable inputs.

Unobservable inputs (nofe a/

TUBRRARENHs)
Capitalisation Market Adjusted Adjusted
Fair value rate rent market price market price
AV BRfit® ik 2k GREnE FEE T
(per square meter]  [per square feet] (per unit]
(5754 (575%) (58t
[note b [note b
(o) (ib)
Hong Kong fnote ¢/ Bh(Witc)
Office N HK$183,400,000 N/A N/A HK$19,621 N/A
(2017: (2017: HK$18,723)
HK$175,000,000)
183,400,000 ¢ MR oyl 19,6157 TR
(Z3-t%: (3t
175,000,000/ 7C) 18,723%70)
Car park BE5 HK$12,600,000 N/A N/A N/A HK$2,100,000
(2017: (2017: HK$1,900,000]
HK$11,400,000)
12,600,000% 7 TER Byl oyl 2,100,000
(ZF-t%: (ZF-t#:
11,400,000%7T) 1,900,000%7T)
The PRC fnote ¢/ hEEc)
Retall & HK$8,717,225,000 2.75% to 4.5% RMB95 to RMB1,200 N/A N/A
(2017: (2017:3%to 4.75%)  [2017: RMB85 to
HK$7,953,696,000] RMBT,200)
8,717,225,000 ¢ 2.75%%4.5% ARETE el TR
(Z3-t%: (Z3—t%&: ARE1,2007
7,953,696,000%7T) 3%E4T5%) (ZF-t%:
AREBSTE
ARE12007)
Office N HK$1,425,031,000 5.25% RMB195to RMB210 N/A N/A
(2017: 2017:5.75%)  (2017: RMB185 to
HK$1,118,510,000] RMB250)
1,425,031,000%7C 5.25% ARE1951E ol TER
(Z3-t£: (23—t ARE2107
1,118510,00047C) 5.75%) (ZF-t%:
NEE1857LE
AREDB0T)
Car park FE3 HK$218,091,000 N/A N/A N/A RMB380,950 to
(2017: RMB500,000
HK$186,569,000) (2017: RMB300,000
to
RMB500,000)
218,091,000 oyl AR NER  ARB809507LE
(ZB—tE: AR¥500,0007
186,569,000/ 72) (ZF—t5:
ARE300,00022
ARH500,00072)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE(E)

Notes: Hiet

(a] The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value are (i) the (&) AFEENATBRERWABBEZBRER: ()&
higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value; (ii] the AetbERRE  AFEAK : (TmHEHEeR
higher the market rent, the higher the fair value; and (iii] the = AFERAS  Ri)EAETELS 2
higher the adjusted market price, the higher the fair value. FEAS -

(b) Adjusted market price has taken into account of property- b) RREBEDEEARIAHYE AR BFE2
specific adjustments including location and timing of reference ER G MBI R o

transactions.

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties is positively (c) REVEZATEFEETSES REAE
correlated to the market rent and adjusted market price, but MEEMRR - BEERNELLXRAER -
inversely correlated to the capitalisation rate.

—F-N\EZA=+-AR=FT—+
B=+—BILERE - BmEARSS

There is no transfer into or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 HE
March 2018 and 31 March 2017. =
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e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. ML EE
Operating
right to
Customer  water supply
contracts business Total
ok
BEFEH REER ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET TET TET
COST AR
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and RZE—RFEA—B -
31 March 2018 —E—+F=RA=1+—A8kK
“E-N\F=R=+—H 31,472 183,398 44,867
AMORTISATION #iH
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—REMNA—H 19,777 5,901 25,678
Charge for the year FRH 1,732 423 2,155
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 21,509 6,324 27,833
Charge for the year FRMNG 1,732 423 2,155
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H 23,241 6,747 29,988
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NEF=A=+—H 8,231 6,648 14,879
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 9,963 7,071 17,034
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18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets were purchased as part of the
acquisition of Regrowth Resources Limited (water supply
business) during the year ended 31 March 2008.

During both years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group
had not recognised any impairment loss in relation to the
customer contracts and operating right included in intangible
assets arising on acquisition of water supply business, which
is included in the cash-generating unit ("CGU") of water supply

business.

The above intangible assets have finite lives and are amortised

on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

18. BILEE(E)

LBV EETRBEE_TZTNF=H
=t BUEFEARBA  ERKREHFLE
RARAB (HKER) 28D °

REBE_ZT-—NFRZZT—+tF=A
=+—HLEFE  AEEREFPEHRE
EREF (Bt ARBHKEBIEE 2 &
FAE) W EEREARERE (G AHK
EBzReEEBM([BReELEMN])) -

bR EE Y ERERER - N TIEH
PR E Y -

Customers contracts 10 - 15 years BEREAK 10-15%
Operating right to water supply business 26 years KT SRR 26F
GOODWILL 19. B8
2018
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FHERT
COST B
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—EFMA—H -
Exchange realignment T 54, 3 2 791
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36)  EAEBKIE B AR (#:#36) 13,361
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-N\F=RA=+—H 14,152

Annual Report 2017/2018 %k

129



130

19. GOODWILL [Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group acquired 51%
equity interests in Fullpay K.K. ["Fullpay”) and goodwill arising
on acquisition of Fullpay amounted to HK$14,152,000.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the CGU of sourcing and provision of electronic
fund transfer at point of sale ("EFT-P0OS”] services (“"sourcing
and EFT-POS business”).

The recoverable amount of the sourcing and EFT-POS business
has been determined based on the value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period,
and discount rate of 15.3%, cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 1% growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
management’'s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of sourcing and EFT-POS business to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of sourcing and EFT-POS

business.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment of goodwill in
sourcing and EFT-POS business.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

19. BE(E)

REBEZE_Z-—N\F=A=+—HILFE "
REEWEFullpaytk X g1t ([ Fullpayl)
51%#E - MES B WEFullpay 2 BEA
14,152,000 7T °

BRERARNE  BESHORERERIER
HEEHEFESHER(TEF ML)
RS ((RBREFINRBEB ) Z2RE
EEEB -

REBREFXNEmEB 2R EEET)
BREMEEFEETE - ZtEEANE
BESAZ AFRMERAE K15.3%853R
EREMNRERERAAE - BBLF
HIEIR £ 8 BIHR 1 % AR 18 = AT -
BEEFIESRA R ARAEREERT
ENEMBEERIEEREHERERN
X ARG DREBEEEHTSERZ
BHAEE - EEEME  HZERR
WEMAEAIREH ST SEBIRBELE
FREHEBHNRTAERBEARDN
Al E R -

HE-_ZT-N\F=A=1+—HIEEE K
SEEREET  RBRETIHRBE
B2 EEWERE -



20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REFE DB 2R

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Cost of investments in associates T Y& R RIRE 2 AN
which are:
- listed in Hong Kong —&B L™ 460,892 507,659
- listed overseas —gsh kT 168,742 168,742
- unlisted —3FEE™ 17,692 17,692
Share of post-acquisition loss and FEAE U BB 12 e 18 I Bt
other comprehensive expense, ZHEAX O REWERE
net of dividends received (97,129) (92,828)
550,197 601,265

Notes: Hiat -

(a] During the year ended 31 March 2018, impairment losses of (a)
HK$46,767,000 (2017: HK$70,281,000) was recognised in relation
to interests in associates.

(b) Included in the share of post-acquisition loss and other (b)
comprehensive expense, net of dividends received was loss
of dilution of interest in an associate listed in Hong Kong of
HK$89,787,000 in 2016.

REE=T—\FZA=+—ALFE -
5 B 5 BB 0 ) 2 0 25 AL LS R
46,767,000 T (=T —+ 4 : 70,281,000/
) o

KT R EEARRG2E

Ax(REREE) eE#ER—RAEE LM
B8 N ) 2 2R 2 JE51889,787,0008 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\FZA=t—RLFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES [Continued)

Details of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 March 2017

and 2018 are as follows:

Name of associate

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

BENAEN MR,/ K5
China Enterprises Limited Bermuda
("CEL’)
China Enterprises Limited BRiE
("CEL’)
Rosedale Hotel Holdings Bermuda
Limited ["Rosedale”)
REBEERERAR BRE
(MaE))
Fortune Well Holdings British Virgin
Limited ["Fortune Well] Islands ['BVI")
Fortune Well Holdings RERAMS
Limited (“Fortune Well’) ([RBEXEE])

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

Place of operation

EENE

Hong Kong and the PRC

G

Hong Kong and the PRC

EBRTHE

Hong Kong and the PRC

EBRTHE

20. RERE DNT R (2)

i)
H

AEFBR T —
=t+—HZEZH

Proportion of equity interest

held by the Group
REBRERELD

2018 2017
—E-N\fF I 3
% %

28.95 28.95
18.82 18.82
26.09 26.09

E&;?*ﬂﬁ A
BEIEE N

Principal activities

TEXR

Investment holding

Hotel operation and
trading of securities

BEEEREAEE

Ceased operation [2017:
Manufacturing and trading
of garments products)
FLEE(ZF—+F:
RKHEREE)



20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES [Continued)

CEL’s subsidiaries operate in both Hong Kong and the PRC and
its shares are traded on the OTC Market in the United States
of America. The financial year end date of CEL is 31 December.
The Group’s share of net assets and interest of CEL at 31
March 2017 and 31 March 2018 is calculated based on the net
assets of CEL as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017
respectively, after adjusting for any material transactions up to
31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018.

As at 31 March 2018, the market value of CEL held by the Group
is approximately HK$3,072,000 (2017: HK$2,630,000) based
on the trade price from the OTC Market, as compared to the
Group's share of the carrying amount of CEL of HK$215,679,000
(2017: HK$209,104,000]). The directors of the Company
conducted a review on the recoverable amounts of the Group's
interest in CEL. The recoverable amount of the Group’s interest
in CEL is determined based on value in use calculation. The
value in use is determined based on the present value of the
expected future cash flows arise from dividends to be received
from CEL and the expected proceeds from the ultimate disposal
of the interest in CEL. No impairment has been recognised on
interest in CEL as the recoverable amount is higher than the

carrying amount.

The Group exercises significant influence over Rosedale
through representation on the board of directors of Rosedale.
Rosedale’s subsidiaries operate in both Hong Kong and the PRC
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. The financial
year end date of Rosedale is 31 December. The Group's share
of net assets and interest of Rosedale at 31 March 2017 and 31
March 2018 is calculated based on the net assets of Rosedale
as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 respectively,
after adjusting for any material transactions up to 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2018.

20.

REE AT 2= (E)

CELZMIBRARIREBRPELE - HR
MEEEEBERTHEES - CELZHMKRFE
HIEESHA+-_A=1+—H8 A&E@EE
HMCELRZ=ZZE—tHF=A=+—HBk=
T-NF=ZA=Z=+—RAZEEFEIEE
& DO BIRECELR =T — X"+ A
= +—BEZZE—tF+ZA=+—H
CEERE KBBEE-_ZT—tF=A
=+—HE=ZZE—N\F=ZA=+—H2Z#E
MEARSEITHBEH -

MNZZE—NE=ZA=+—8  KEHRSD
B2 RSB NEEFCELZMENR
3,072,000 L (=& — £ : 2,630,000
BL) MAEEEHCELZREME
Bl /215,679,000 T (=& — £ &F -
209,104,000/ 7T) « A ARIEFE WA
EEACELZERZ 2 AN ESHE - AEE
MCELZ #z 2 I Bl &R R FEAE
B EEET - EREABEVRAER
BCELUWM Z IR B R EECELERFT
B2 MBRIBEA CBHRRESR
EREET BHRAKREEESNEE
8 M EERCELER ZRIE -

AEBEBERRREENEZESS ¥
ZATBERATESN - MBZHBARR
BERPBEE - HRD OB LT °
B BREREEIEBRAT=—A=1T—
He "EEBEGHBER-_Z—tF=A
=t+t—HEZE-NF=ZA=+—RHZE&
EFELER  DORRERER_-Z
—ANFEF+ZA=ZF+—HBRZZE—+tF+=
A=+—HZzEBEFE  &ERIRNEBE
—E—+tF=-A=t+—RBEkZZE-N\EF=
A=Z+—RABEZAMNERRHETHE
BEtHE -
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES [Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the market value of Rosedale held by the
Group is approximately HK$59,402,000 (2017: HK$61,630,000)
based on the quoted price from the Stock Exchange, as
compared to the Group's share of the carrying amount
of Rosedale of HK$334,518,000 (2017: HK$392,161,000).
The directors of the Company conducted a review on the
recoverable amounts of the Group's interest in Rosedale. The
recoverable amount of the Group's interest in Rosedale is
determined based on value in use calculation. The value in use
is determined based on the present value of the expected future
cash flows arise from dividends to be received from Rosedale
and the expected proceeds from the ultimate disposal of the
interest in Rosedale. During the year ended 31 March 2018, an
impairment loss of HK$46,767,000 (2017: HK$56,013,000) has
been recognised on interest in Rosedale as the recoverable

amount is lower than the carrying amount.

The carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Fortune Well
was nil as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

20. REHE N R 2 (4F)

RZE—NFE=ZA=+—8 " HRBREX
FieRmE AEEMFHBZMELNAR
59,402,00058 7 ( —ZF—+4 : 41,630,000
BIL) MASEREREREZEEME
All A 334,518,000 L (= & — + &
392,161,000 7T) - RARIEFEERKARE
REBEFEERIRNEERAB 2 Bm 2
RO &% - BRECAEBEDRAESRE
H\ﬂa Bz R B R E I A

BENMBRBEEEZENARRES
/}\LE£E1E?£E REBEZ2-_ZT—N\F=A8
=+—HIEFE aRARESBEENE
HE WESR BB ERERAEESE
46,767,000 7T (=& — 44 : 56,013,000
BT °

WoE—N\ER-F—LEZA=+—
H - KEBERFortune WellZ iR 2 R E
BEAEE -

EABELNT M BERME

AEBEERBE QR ZMHERB AL
T o X2 BERBETIE &R RIRE
BEREVBREENBR M BHRERATE
e

P A % 0 & N R R A SRR M F4R
BMBHRERAR



20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)] 20. REt& DR 2z (4F)

Summarised financial information of material BEABMEQNTZHBERNBE(E)
associates (Continued)]
[a] CEL la] CEL
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—E—tF —E—RF
t=A=+—-8B +ZA=1+—H
HK$°000 HK$ 000
TEx FET
Current assets BB E 599,518 587,616
Non-current assets EMENEE 227,457 221,161
Current liabilities mEEE (37,066) (41,581)
1.1.2017 to 1.1.2016 to
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—E—tF —E—RF
—~B-RE —A—B%
—E—+F AN
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA - =
Profit for the year F N ) 7,696 708
Other comprehensive (expense) FAHEMEBE(FAZ)KRA
income for the year (60,499) 50,190
Total comprehensive (expense) FAZE(FAX)WALERE
income for the year (52,803) 50,898
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES [Continued)

Summarised financial information of material

associates (Continued]
[a] CEL (Continued]

20. REHE N R 2 (4F)

BEABERNRAZUBENBE(E)

(a] CEL(#)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial B S BRI B B pNAR A B R Rk
information to the carrying amount of the interest in N HE R 2 Bt & R B 4 ﬁTi TH B 2 %
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial i
statements:
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—E—tF —T-REF
t=A=+—H +-A=+—~
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Net assets of CEL CELZEEFE 789,909 767,196
Proportion of the Group’s REERCELZ
ownership interest in CEL WA ERES LA 28.95% 28.95%
228,679 222,104
Other adjustments Hihigee (13,000) (13,000)
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBENCELER 2
interest in CEL BREE 215,679 209,104
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)] 20. REt& DR 2z (4F)

Summarised financial information of material BEABMEQNTZHBERNBE(E)
associates (Continued)]
[b] Rosedale b) HHE
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—E—tF —E—RF
t=A=+—-8B +ZA=1+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Current assets BB E 1,889,181 1,907,740
Non-current assets EMENEE 584,911 627,270
Current liabilities mEEE (185,063) (181,904)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (41,154) (46,583)
1.1.2017 to 1.1.2016 to
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—E—+F —E—RF
—A—RAZ% —H—H=ZE
—E—+F AN
t=A=+—-B +ZA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TExT FET
Revenue WA 252,311 242,296
Loss for the year FAEE (125,248) (93,194)
Other comprehensive income FRAHMPEWA(FX)
(expense] for the year 52,885 (45,887)
Total comprehensive expense FALHEMS L0
for the year (72,363) (139,081)
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e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued] 20. RERE DNT R (2)
Summarised financial information of material BEABMEQNTZHBERNBE(E)
associates (Continued)]

[b] Rosedale (Continued) b] FHEE(#E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial it B RS E R E e SR B
information to the carrying amount of the interest in N HE R 2 Bt & R B 4 ﬁTi TH B 2 %
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial i
statements:
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
+=HA=+—8H +=A=+—H”
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Net assets of Rosedale MECEEFE 2,247,875 2,306,523
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RS (191,656) (192,518)
2,056,219 2,114,005
Proportion of the Group's ownership AN&EBERIAEZ
interest in Rosedale R R 18.82% 18.82%
386,980 397,856
Impairment loss R EE R (52,462) (5,695)

Carrying amount of the Group's RNEERINE R 2 REE
interest in Rosedale 334,518 392,161
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21.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE

FROM A JOINT VENTURE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group, together with
Violet Profit Holdings Limited (“the joint venture partner”], a
private company incorporated in BVI, established an entity,
Edgar Team Limited ("Edgar Team”], in which the Group holds
50% equity interest. There were two shares at par value of US$1
each allotted and issued as fully paid shares to the Group and
the joint venture partner respectively. Pursuant to the relevant
shareholders’ agreement, the Group has the power to appoint
one director and the joint venture partner has the power to
appoint another one director to form the board of director of
Edgar Team, and the decisions about the relevant activities of
Edgar Team required the unanimous consent of both the Group
and the joint venture partner. Accordingly, the Group is able to
exercise joint control with the joint venture partner over Edgar
Team and Edgar Team is regarded as a joint venture of the
Group. In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Group advanced an amount of HK$66,834,000 to Edgar Team
and its direct wholly-owned subsidiary as its working capital for
business development.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group disposed
the interest in Edgar Team to the joint venture partner at the
consideration of HK$91,497,000 and recognised a gain on
disposal amounting to HK$43,944,000.

2. R—EEEE R ER—

LRV

HE-_Z—X"FZA=+—HLEEE XK
% B % 18 Violet Profit Holdings Limited
(TEELERE] —HRRBELHES
MR 2 FAARRD) R —EAREE
B 50% f% # 2 B B8 Edgar Team Limited
([Edgar Team]) - ZEBRAE L EE
ORI ER S RETMRERAEMBE1ET
ZHRIRG - MIBEARREHE - ARA
SEEREZEENESEMAELERNSE
BEZAS—UEFHKEdgar TeamZEE
g » fEdgar Teami@EEB 2 RREE
EEBEEEPERE —HRABEFEE
F ot AL B A EE S ER N HEdgar
Team T{E £ FEHI# - MEdgar Team &
BREAREEZEEDRE - 1IN REEZ
T-RFZA=1+—HILFE F5EHA
Edgar Team R HEEZEMBAT#H—F
66,834,000  (EREXEBERZ
EBED °

BE-_ZT- ) \F=ZA=+—ALFE XK
SEMAEERERHELENEdger TeamZ
HEzE - REA91,497,0008 7T © LA RFER
HE U 43,944,000/ TT ©
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e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\FZA=t—RLFE

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE 21. R—EE &b ¥ s Eik—
FROM A JOINT VENTURE [Continued] BEELEREE)
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture as follows: AEER—EEEECREFBOT ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in M Edgar Team 2 JE £
Edgar Team B -
Share of post-acquisition loss FE(E UK BRI E5 18 - (20,447)
Deemed capital contribution RIEHE
- interest-free loan — R BEX - 20,447
Amount due from a joint venture, net [EW—FA S EREFEHE - 31,345
Attributable proportion
of nominal value of  Proportion of voting
Name of Form of business  Place of Principal place  Class of issued/registered power held by the
company structure incorporation  of operation shares held capital held by the Group Company Principal activities
AEEBREE
BE&fT/EMER ARAREL
naER EHERER AMRUEE TEEXBE  SERGERN  EE2EELA RERLA  TEXER
2018 217 2018 217
ZB-N\E CT4F ZB-0\E DT LF
Edgar Team Incorporated BVI Hong Kong Ordinary Nil 50% Nil 50% Investment holding and
its subsidiary engaged
in provision of aviation
services in Hong Kong
A AL ZERAEE BA LER g 2 RERREAMBRAR
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

22. AHEHERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Unlisted equity securities [note a/ e MR F (M ita) 44,538 37,412
Distressed debt assets (note bJ TREBEE(HiFb) 200,947 155,976
245,485 193,388

Less: Distressed debt assets W D BAREBEEZ
classified as current asset TREBEE (75,780) =

Available-for-sale investments DEAERDEEZ

classified as non-current assets AIEEHERE 169,705 193,388

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Included in the unlisted equity securities is an investee engaged
in holding of properties interest located in the PRC. The unlisted
equity securities are measured at cost less impairment at the end
of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

The distressed assets represents the Group's rights to receive
repayment of the principal amount of loans, together with
interest thereon. The Group acquired these distressed assets
from banks and assets management companies through
negotiated acquisition and public auction. The Group established
corresponding management strategies and maximizes the value
of assets to achieve cash recovery by recovery through litigation.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the distressed asset is carrying
amount of RMB61,154,000 (or equivalent to HK$75,780,000) (31
March 2017: RMB54,134,000 (or equivalent to HK$61,099,000))
of principal amount of a loan and interest receivable of
RMB72,499,000 from an independent third party, ER ==&
ERMEZEABR AT The distressed asset is secured by properties
located in Guangzhou, the PRC. The distressed asset was
acquired through acquisition of Topack Group Limited (“Topack”)
and its subsidiaries [together the “Topack Group”] during the
year ended 31 March 2017, please refer to note 36 for details.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, an impairment loss of
HK$3,553,000 (31 March 2017: nil] has been recognised as the
management was in the opinion that the expected recovery date
of the distressed asset is extended. As at 31 March 2018, the
key unobservable inputs of discounted cash flows represent
the expected recoverable amounts of RMB72,499,000 (31 March
2017: RMB72,499,000), discount rates of 18.55% (31 March 2017:
18.55%) and expected recovery date of 31 March 2019 (31 March
2017: 31 December 2018).

Kt

(a)

(b)

FEMRAEZBREEBRRABAUNNTEZ
MERBIRRET - ARBB R FEME
BEMEX  MARTAEERRIFLTEAR
EBH 2 RV EEEF S E - R R RD
RERA BB BZEEF

TREERASBUDMER AR ZEHE
RIEF B ZHERN - AEREZEEHEKERLA
RHEARTREEEEARNUBZETR
AE - AKEGEHENEERBRESR
REEBE NWEBFLREEL -

R-_E-—NF=ZA=+—H TREE
BEEEEAARM 61,154,000 7T (48
/75780000 ) (ZE—+EF=A
=+—H8: AR¥54,134,000 T (L AHE R
61,099,000/ 7T) ) 2 B A& 88 & B WUE L
E-HEREERMEREBRARZHE
ANR#72,499,0007C © TR EE LR HE
BMZMEEER -BE-_T—+tF=A
=t+—HALFE TREEZBRKEEM
SEARAR([EAR] REMBAR(HHE
[EHER]) mkE  FEFBEE2HME
o HE_E—N\FE=-ZA=Z+—AHLEE "
B R EE 83,553,000 T (—F—+ 4
ZA=+—R8B: %) DAREEERR -
FREEZEHKRBAHEER - R=2F
—N\E=ZA=1+—8 BRREREZM@H
TOBRHABKERHITRESEARE
72,499,000t (ZFE—+tF=A=+—8 :
AR#72,499,0007T) * BAIRE18.55%(=F
—+F=A=+—A8 :18.55%) RFELHKE B
H-_ZT-—hhF=ZA=+—8H(=ZF—+tF=A
=+—RB:ZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I‘/T\

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

BB ERR M

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

INVESTMENTS

[Continued]

Notes: [Continued]

(b)

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, included in the distressed asset is carrying
amount of RMB101,010,000 (or equivalent to HK$125,167,000] (31
March 2017: RMB84,061,000 (or equivalent to HK$94,877,000))
of principal amount of a loan of RMB170,000,000 from an
independent third party, BMRAREETRBERMELR. The
distressed asset is secured by properties and a land use right
located in Anhui, the PRC. The distressed asset was acquired
through acquisition of EM{ZFBMEEHBR AT ("Guangzhou
Ren Xun Communications Equipment Co, Ltd") ("Ren Xun”) during
the year ended 31 March 2017, please refer to note 35 for details.
As at 31 March 2018, the key unobservable inputs of discounted
cash flows represent the expected recoverable amounts of
RMB170,000,000 (31 March 2017: RMB170,000,000), discount
rates of 19.26% (31 March 2017: 19.26%) and expected recovery
date of 31 March 2021 (31 March 2017: 31 March 2021).

The distressed assets are measured at fair value determined with
reference to discounted cash flow model. The key unobservable
inputs used by the management in discounted cash flows model
included the expected recoverable amounts of the distressed
debt assets, discount rates reflect both return requirements of
the market and the risk inherent in the investment and expected
recovery date. The higher the recoverable amounts, the lower the
discount rates and the earlier the recovery date, will result in the
higher of the fair value.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to discount rates for the distressed debt assets.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points) increase or
decrease is used for distressed debt assets and when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in discount rates respectively.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

22. AMHHEERE(E)

(b

(%)
(&)

RZFE—NF=ZA=+—H '  TREE
BIEKREEAAK®I01,010000 7T (s
MHER1251670008 L) (ZTE—tF =
BA=+—8 : AR%¥84,061,0007t (k48
E R 94,877,000 7)) 2 A EAARE
170,000,000c 2 By E=HEMBEREET
BERERNMBRZER - TREENMLRF
B Rz R T EAEERR - BE=
T—+tH=A=+—ALFE TREESE
BUERMNCABAZBEERAR (M=)
ks - AAFBELMMEIs - R
—N\E=ZA=+—08 MBEBALREZEL
FOBRGABIEEEHITRESEARE
170,000,000c(=T—tF=A=+—8 :
AR¥170,000,0007T) * BHEE19.26%(=F
—+F=A=+—8 :19.26%) RIFEHHKE B
T -——F=ZA=+—H(ZF—t&F=A

=t+—RB:=—B-—F=A=+—H)-
TREERATENZE  W2RUBRASH

BEAEE - EEERMRASAEEAF
ERZARTAIEEHAMBEETIRER
BEZEMAIEEESRE  BRERKRTSEE
BERNUEREREHKRE A ZEER
B o AIREISFEAS « BB EAE - mikE
RHER  HoBERZATE-

INTHRBRESMDERTREBEEMNR
RERET  WRENBRALREESHIA
REEFEHREENRR - ARTRER
BEANEFEZEEEABNPREFEAR
RFTEAI100EE (=T — 4 : 100E8)2

EMSAYL - AEREHERE AR LR
DRETE



22.

23.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
[Continued]

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

If discount rates for distressed debt assets had been 100 basis
points (2017: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2018 would increase/decrease by HK$3,722,000 (profit for the year
ended 31 March 2017: decrease/increase by HK$3,408,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to discount rates on
its distressed debt assets.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The carrying amounts of properties held for sale comprise

properties situated in:

22. AMHHEERE(E)

Hia - (%)
(b) (&)

W TREFEEZINBEREN, 710018
EI(ZT—+4 : 100AX)  MAEH
MERERTIE  AEEHE_T—/\F
A=+ BLEENBEGEN RS
3,722,000 t(HE=T—+tF=RA=1+—
BiEFEEF w188 003,408,000 7
) WHEZERAEBZTREBEBEED
WHRERR -

23. BFEHENRE
BIFREnE REESENELR -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Hong Kong BB 96,761 96,761
The PRC H - 1,035,390
96,761 1,132,151
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

24. BE R EMEBEWRRARANRE

PREPAYMENTS

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 4,014 2,429

Other receivables [net of allowance E b U 7008 (FO B RER B )
for doubtful debts) (note) oz 36,125 252,128
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFIA 4,399 15,034
Interest receivables FEYLF B 21,158 14,516
Prepaid LAT and other PRC taxes TR+ 438 (B 75 % H A B A TE - 103,318
65,696 387,425

Note: As at 31 March 2017, included in the other receivables was
HK$171,265,000 of receivables from Mr. Chan Tsz Pan, the
vendor of Topack Group, on the PRC withholding tax arising
from the sales of the entire equity interest in Topack to the
Group. The respective PRC withholding tax payable to the
PRC Government of HK$171,265,000 was included in the
other payables and accruals. For details for acquisition of

Topack Group, please refer to note 36(b). During the year
ended 31 March 2018, the PRC withholding tax was settled
by Mr. Chan and hence the respective other receivable and
other payable of the Group was eliminated.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

Wit -

R-T—+t&=A=+—0 - HibfE
WHREBEEERAAEELEEZERZE
HiEmEE 2P ITE%D%RWEW%
TREE(EREEBZER)ZK
171,265,000 7% 7T ° F& @ Eﬁzw&ﬂ
iz & B TE 40 B IE 171,265,000 78
Tt AHRMENRBRESER - &
FAUEERERZFE  S2MME
36b) e RBE-_T—NF=A=+—
BILLFE  PEBHNHRBCHRLEE
A EUE AR E 2 E b R RIE N
HihEAFIES aHH -



24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24 BEZRHMEWRERBANRKE

PREPAYMENTS (Continued] (#&)
The Group allows an average credit period of one to two months REBRMAMKEBRESEPRHTHE—
to its trade customers in water supply business. The following EREATEZEED - RIREHR - B
is an aged analysis of trade receivable, presented based on ZRWFIAREZ B A2 2 iRk DT 10
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: I
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
0 - 30 days 0B Z30H 4,014 2,429
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess and EEMEAHER > AEEGFERT
understand the potential customer’s credit quality and defines MEERP2EEERIETHGEER
its credit limits. Credit limits attributed to each customer are BoBUEPZEEREASIETHR
reviewed regularly. e
No trade receivable balance is past due at the reporting date for RBEFE  REBTENBREHES
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss for both HE R IRBERERE 2B 5 WA
years. LEBA o
No allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables has been RMEFE - WERE S EWFUERES
provided and no movement in the allowance was noted for both REE - TEESREERS -
years.
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25. SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE

JE Y E K

Loans receivable

25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR I EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

FEWIEHE R

2018 2017
—g-NF e
HK$°000 HK$ 000
F# T
57,000 57,000

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group advanced
HK$17,000,000 and HK$10,000,000 (2018: nil) unsecured
short-term loans to two (2018: nil) independent third parties.
The loans receivable are repayable on demand without fixed

repayment terms.

As at 31 March 2018, short-term loans receivable of
HK$57,000,000 (2017: HK$57,000,000) carry fixed interest
rate ranged from 5% to 15% (2017: 5% to 15%) per annum.
The directors of the Company expect the short-term loans

receivable to be fully settled within next twelve months.

As at 31 March 2018, the directors of the Company were in
the opinion that no impairment was recognised as the loans
receivable was fully settled subsequent to the year ended 31
March 2018.

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group received
HK$41,511,000 settlement from an associate. HK$5,000,000
of a loan to an associate was written off during the year as the
management considers the amount is uncollectible in view of

the associate’s severe financial difficulties.

As at 31 March 2017, the amounts are in non-trade nature,
unsecured and repayable on demand. Except from a loan to
an associate of HK$5,000,000 which carries variable interest
rate based on Hong Kong Prime Rate without fixed repayment
terms, the remaining amount due from an associate is non-

interest bearing.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

26.

REE-_T—+F=ZA=+—RAILEE "
N & B #417,000,0005 7T & 10,000,000
BL(ZZ—N\F : &)BEERCHERT
ME(ZE—N\F  E)BLE=F - Bl
BERERENREE  WEBRTEEZHR -

RZZE—N\F=ZA=Z+—H " EBYE
B & 557,000,000 8 T (=& — £ F
57,000,000/ 7T ) = E & F F E5% £ 15%
TE—F 5%EI15%)FE - ARFE
S EBERERER AR+ ZE AR
BB -

MN-ZZE—N\EZA=1+—08 ' ARFES
RE BARBE-_ZTE—N\F=ZA=+—8
LHFEREREREBREN BB ErE
RIAME °

FE W Bt & A R RO

REBEE-_T-—NF=ZA=+—RHILEE "
REEWE B —HEEE R F41,511,000%
THEMNRIE AEEERE AR —
HEE AR 2E THBEE - ExiE
5,000,000 T2 Bt & A RIER « BHERNF
R SHEZ RIE o

RZZE—+F=ZA=+—H Z&BAH}F
BHHE BEMNARERER - KR
g — [ B¢ & X 515,000,000 %8 7T & IR E
BREBNEZZBMNEFSAEETEE
RHISN - M —REE R R ESRIERR

B o

7



27. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 27. HFIERERE
2018 2017
e AS: S e
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Listed securities at fair value: BRATEZ FTES

- Equity securities listed in —REB LT ZRAE S
Hong Kong 80,981 48,888
- Equity securities listed overseas — RSN BT 2 R 5 19 21
81,000 48,909

28.

The fair value of all listed equity securities are determined
by reference to the quoted market bid prices available on the
relevant exchanges in active markets as at 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2017.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSIT

The bank balances and cash comprises cash and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
held by the Group. The bank balances carries interest at 0.01%
to 0.35% per annum (2017: 0.01% to 0.35% per annum].

The restricted bank deposit represents the deposit received

from the sales of properties.

28.

B LTRABHRZ AFEDNSER-F
—NF=ZRA=+—HBE-_Z—+5F=H
=t—BEARMS ZHEBXSM IS
BEAREMETE °

BITHESBRAE ZREBTHE
b

PIRBRALOEARBRHEZRS
RIEEIE A A=A A AN 2 BRI

Ao BITEBIZFR00I%E0.35% (==
— 4 F£E0.01%%E0.35%)5F 8 °

XRHRITFFIEHEMRAEER o
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29. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS

HELD FOR SALE

On 14 March 2018, the Group entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement with a third party (the "Purchaser”],
pursuant to which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
acquire and the Group has conditionally agreed to sell 100%
equity interest in Smartmedia Ltd. ("Smartmedia”] and the
shareholder’s loan at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$196,000,000. The shareholder loan represents all such
sum of money advanced by way of loan by the Group to the
Smartmedia and due and owing by Smartmedia to the Group
as at completion of the disposal. Smartmedia is engaged in
property investment and its principal assets are investment

properties situated in Hong Kong.

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for

sale are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

DERFFEHECEEREK

RZZE-N\F=A+WMBE  KEHEHEE=
ﬁ(fEEJ)ETiﬁuuﬁEEWJEﬁ R
EHEBRMEARKEMAEEEEHERE
H & Smartmedia Ltd. ([ Smartmedia | )
100%ERERER  REKELARER
196,000,000/ 7T - RREFIEN L EFA
TERK RN & B LA B 505 K [RISmartmedia
B2 A B BRIE K Smartmedia | A7
JEN T A& E 2 5IE ° Smartmediaft =
MERE  BEEXZEERBTBIERED
=,

SR RRBIERE Y BEREH Y X B
mT -

2018

—E-N\E

HK$'000

FET

Investment properties (note 17) BEMEHIZEI7) 196,000
Other receivables H fth fE UL FRIE 137
Bank balances and cash RITER KRS 5
Total assets classified as held for sale DERSEHECEAESR 196,142
Other payables H b JE T FIE 4,052
Bank borrowings (note 32) RITIER(H7E32) 116,984
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DERIFEHEE CERERE 121,036

In considering the insignificant transaction costs, the net
proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying
amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and accordingly, no

impairment loss has been recognised.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT
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30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS HiENREREGTER
2018 2017
e AS: S —
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FExT FET
Accrued expenses TR X 178,753 126,230
Interest payables FESFIE 35,039 33,737
Payables for construction project ERIEEEAR 9,871 8,991
Others Hib 80,494 251,584
304,157 420,542

31.

32.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

The amount represented deposits received in related to the
presale of certain properties of A-Mall which were classified
as properties held for sale as at 31 March 2017. The amount
was fully recognised as revenue during the current year upon

completion of the sale process.

31. AWET &

Z T RREREER TA-MallEWER Z 5T
® REMER_T—tF=A=+—8H
REBEBAFHEHENE - RERBEERRE
& ZLRCHRRAFE WS -

BORROWINGS 32. BR
2018 2017
—E-N\E —+F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Borrowings comprise: BREIE
Secured bank borrowings BIIMIRITIER 2,766,485 2,246,144
Secured other borrowings BEAEAER 53,000 752,390
Unsecured other borrowings S E A 2 R 1,581,396 211,400
Unsecured loan notes EIEHE R 1,440,000 1,400,000
5,840,881 4,609,934
Less: Liabilities classified as held B D ERSEHE
for sale (note 29) ZaEE29) (116,984) -
5,723,897 4,609,934
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

32. BORROWINGS [Continued) 32. BR(E)
2018 2017
—®-NF e
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FAETT

The amounts are repayable as follows: 3t RIBZER LA T G HIEE

The Group's borrowings are repayable A&EE 7 EHALE Wiz
based on repayment schedules set A 2 ERRRERERAT

out in the loan agreements,

as follows:
- on demand or within one year —EER—FR 845,656 375,854
- more than one year, but not ——FRENHBRME
exceeding two years 1,679,239 825,129
- more than two years, but not —MFEREBETBBRAST
more than five years 2,340,939 2,742,306
- more than five years —hF% 975,047 666,645
5,840,881 4,609,934
Less: Amounts due within one year B IARBEEBEE TR —FA
shown under current liabilities B ER 2 FRIE (B R S e 2
(including a borrowing with a SKEBIGRZER)
repayable on demand clause) (728,672) (375,854)
Liabilities classified as held DERFBIEHEE
for sale (note 29) ZBEH729) (116,984) =
4,995,225 4,234,080
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)
As at 31 March 2018, certain of the Group's borrowings
amounted to HK$2,967,601,000 (2017: HK$2,299,390,000)
were subject to fixed interest rate. The Group's remaining
borrowings were based on Hong Kong Prime Rate, Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") and benchmark interest rate
in People’s Bank of China. The ranges of effective interest rates
during the year (which are equal to contractual interest rates)

on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rate: BERFIE

Fixed-rate borrowings

Variable-rate borrowings

32. BR(E)

RZZT—N\F=A=+—8 AEEH
T A&%2,967,601,000/8 T (ZE—+% :
2,299,390,0004 7T ) 2 f& IR [E & I = 5
B EfERARESREENEX - B8
IRITRIERS([BBRITRAZERS ) KA
B ARRITZELEFRERGTE - REBER
RERZERFE (BEREHF X)W
T

2018 2017
—g-NF —TtfF

8% to 18%
8%ZE18%
2.5% to 18%
2.5%ZE18%

9.5% to 18%
9.5% £18%
2.05% to 18%
2.05%%18%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

33. DEFERRED TAX

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

33. BRI E

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) FAEERZETBELEHIEAB(EBE) R
recognised and movements thereon during the year: HEsmT :
Fair value
adjustment
of intangible
assets and
property,
Fair value plant and
Fairvalue  changesof  equipment
changes of ~ available-  arisingon  Accelerated
investment for-sale business tax Tax
properties investments combination  depreciation losses Total
BEHBAH
]34
BVEER
s ES
REnmx R&z HERRR i
AVERE AVESD AVEIR BERE HEER 3
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL TEn TiEr TiEn TR
At 1 April 2016 RZB—"EMA-A = 4,890 37 (32) 4,895
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RERNR (AK) 739,189 1,916 (623) (6) - 740,476
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36/ WEMBAR(Hzt2s) 591,884 8,705 - - - 800,589
Acquisition of assets through acquisiton ~ EBKENHBARKEEE
of subsidiaries /note 35/ (Hi#35) 29,618 - - - - 29618
Exchange realignment AR (44,232) (285) - - - (64,517)
At 31 March 2017 A 3 1,316,459 10,336 4,267 31 (320 1,331,061
Charge [credit) to profit or loss RESTR(AK) 34,432 7,046 (554) - - 40,92
Exchange realignment [ A% 130,724 1391 - = = 132,115
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\§=A=1-H 1,481,615 18,773 3,713 3 (320 1,504,100
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33. DEFERRED TAX [Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

33. IBEEHIA(E)

VAT R VER 76 B 3 ik 2 B TRIR A 82 0
#r

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE E (32) (32)
Deferred tax liabilities FEER B A FE 1,504,132 1,331,093
1,504,100 1,331,061

The Group has unused tax losses of HK$2,117,000,000 as at
31 March 2018 (2017: HK$1,403,629,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such tax losses amounting to HK$196,000
(2017: HK$196,000). No deferred tax has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax loss of HK$2,116,804,000 (2017:
HK$1,403,433,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams. The losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect of
undistributed retained profits earned by the subsidiaries in the
PRC as the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—8 A5H
AR R a2 R A IEE
8 /42117,000000 T (=& — £ F :
1,403,629,000787T) » ANEE B 5£196,000
BIL(ZZT— L5 : 196,008 T) 28
BEERERECEHREEE - ARKEE
B AR TR s B SRR - MR B B E SR B IE
E5182,116,804,0008 L (=& — + F :
1,403,433,000/ 7T ) ERIELEIA « ZF
BB R ER A o

RRABIL TS BB QB AEZRDIK
RERFEAELERE  ARARAES
RAREE B TR ZREE 2K
M BRARASRATeE mE R ZR A
REm -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

154

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, BA
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Value
BREE R&OEE BE
Notes HK$ HK$'000
Hiat BT FHET
Authorised: SEERRA
At 1 April 2016 RITE—REF
mA—H 0.2 10,000,000,000 2,000,000
Increase in authorised VATE BAD 15 N
shares [c) 90,000,000,000 18,000,000
At31 March 2017 and RZT—tFRK
2018 —T-N\F
—A=1+—H 0.2 100,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: E?é‘ﬁ&%liﬂx$
Balance at 1 April 2016 RZE—RF
V_EUE]_EZI%% 0.2 561,857,211 112,371
Issue of shares BITR G la) 4,494,857,688 898,972
Issue of shares as scrip ZITUAR R B R D
dividend (b] 92,379,426 18,476
Bonus issue BATHIRR [c) 5,149,094,325 1,029,819
Balance at 31 March 2017 R=Z—tF K&
and 2018 —NF=HA
=t—HZ#%& 0.2 10,298,188,650 2,059,638

E

ek

|
i
i
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34. SHARE CAPITAL [Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c]

On 25 January 2016, the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) announced to put forward a proposal to the shareholders
which involved, among other things, a proposed rights issue of
4,494,857,688 rights shares at HK$0.25 per rights share. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25
January 2016, circular dated 10 March 2016 and prospectus dated
11 April 2016. The proposed rights issue was completed in April
2016.

On 29 June 2016, the Board proposed a final dividend of HK3 cents
per share for the year ended 31 March 2016. The proposed final
dividend was declared on 13 September 2016 and the dividend
would be settled in cash, with an option to elect to receive the
same in scrip shares credited as fully paid in lieu of cash, in
respect of part or all of such dividends. The market value of each
scrip share was HK$0.4465. 92,379,426 scrip shares had been
issued and allotted in November 2016. For details, please refer to
the Company’s circular dated 7 October 2016.

On 28 November 2016, the Board put forward a proposal to the
shareholders of bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share
for every one existing share held. In order to facilitate the bonus
issue and possible further issue of shares, the Board also
proposed to increase the authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares to
HK$20,000,000,000 divided into 100,000,000,000 shares. The
increase in authorised share capital was effective and the bonus
issue was completed in February 2017. For details, please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 13 December 2016 and
circular dated 4 January 2017.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the existing shares in

issue in all respects

34, A (&

st -

(a)

(b)

(c)

E/Q\:? /\f‘E ﬂ +£E| Z’S T§$
e(([EFg)ARRREEZ(HEPRE)
thﬂxtﬁﬂxﬂxmoza%anﬂ f& - 1T
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BRER =T —NFENATK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R IR R I EE
For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

35.ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHE-ZT—tF=-A=T—HILHFE

3. FRWBHEBLARWBEE

REBEE_Z—+&F=-A=+—HLEFE "
AEBERBERENBE AR - BIEMT
EEMEETEERAR (=) RCH -
RAREFRA  WHEZEWBRRLT
BREBEH(ERRBEENBERELER
FE3%) Bt 2EWEREKKEE
o ZFWE ZFBERENT

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group completed
the acquisition of two subsidiaries, BT =EMEXEES
[R2A] ("Guangzhou Gao Jie Properties Management Co,
Ltd") ("Gao Jie") and Ren Xun. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that acquisition of these subsidiaries
does not constitute business combinations as defined in
HKFRS 3, therefore, these acquisitions have been accounted
for as acquisition of assets. Details of these acquisitions are

summarised follows:

R-ZZE—t&=F+=0 KEER
BN E=FRERREZ 2IE - R
B A ARM86,797,0007T (HAEE R
97,965,000 7T ) = B 7 BB N
MIEEMERE -

a] On 13 March 2017, the Group acquired the entire equity (a)
interest in Gao Jie from an independent third party
at a consideration of RMB86,797,000 (or equivalent
to HK$97,965,000]). Gao Jie is engaged in property

investments in Guangzhou, the PRC.

Total
k]
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets of Gao Jie acquired: FriiiE z =M EEFE :

Investment properties REYE 162,499
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE S 2,382
Other payables and accruals Hh e IR N e R B (3,438)
Borrowing (SR (33,860)
Deferred tax liabilities BEIERIAAE (29.618)
Net assets BEFRE 97,965
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 97,965
Bank balances and cash acquired BEE 2 RITHEBR RIS (2,382)

Net cash outflow in respect of ERANE—FRBAR 2B SR L FEE
the acquisition of a subsidiary 95,583

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT



35.ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Continued)

(b)

On 15 March 2017, the Group acquired the entire equity

interest in Ren Xun from independent third parties at
a consideration of RMB83,998,000 (or equivalent to
HK$94,806,000). Ren Xun holds interest in an available-

for-sale investment in Anhui, the PRC.

35. BBUWENEBLARNWBEE(E)

ZE—tF=A=+—HILFEE)

RZZE—tF=A+HA  AEAMA
B E=FREBCMz2BRE - R
B & AR%83,998,0007T (k8 & K
94,806,000 7T) « AR F
Bz AT SR E 2 s o

Total
HK$ 000
FHT
Net assets of Ren Xun acquired: g 2 CAEEFE :

Available-for-sale investment A HERE 94,877
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE S 47
Other payables and accruals Hh e 5RIE N FE R B (112)
Net assets BEFE 94,806
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 94,806
Bank balances and cash acquired BliE 2 SRITEBR RIS (41)

Net cash outflow in respect of EAKE—FNBRARZRE R F5E
the acquisition of a subsidiary 94,765
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. WIBKIE AT

(a)J On 31 August 2017, the Group acquired 51% equity al RZFE—tFE\A=+—H K&
interests in Fullpay from an independent third party at a B — & &7 % =7 415,300,000
total cash consideration of HK$15,300,000. This acquisition Bz AR S REBWEFullpayd1%
has been accounted for using the acquisition method. PetE - ZWEERKBEAR -
Fullpay is engaged in the sourcing and provision of EFT- Fullpay=HERE AR ZEF 1R
POS terminals and peripheral devices which support HIHREXNZHERHETFELE
WeChat Pay, as well as the provision of relevant EFT- BR(EFT-POS) 42 um# K [ 38 3% 4 - A
POS installation and system support services, to vendors MAREIAREFT-POSZ ZH R RH X
in Japan. The Group acquired Fullpay for the purposes of FRT - REEWEFullpay I AT
gaining reputation in overseas markets and provides the RGNS R BEW RN E B
Group a valuable opportunity to step into the potential ENBEBB X NITE S

mobile payment industry.

HK$°000
FAT
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised R UKE B BiUCE
at the date of acquisition are as follows BEMERZBEWT
(determined on a provisional basis): (IRERRFELERETE ) ¢
Property, plant and equipment W WIBERRE 2,284
Other receivables HAh & YRR IR 1,913
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEBR R S 104
Other payables H e R (500)
Provisional net assets B 5 & B R B 3,801
Consideration on acquisition WHEERE 15,300
Non-controlling interests (49% in Fullpay)  FE3ER%#Ez (Fullpay,249%) 1,862
Less: Provisional net assets recognised W BHERZ RN EERE (3,801)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEPEE 2 BHE 13,361
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Fullpay because the HRAEHRKABIEEENSIER
cost of the combination included potential revenue growth K Fullpay R R T H B R - HUE
and future market development of Fullpay. FullpayZE & & -
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected TEHZIAN B PRE £ 2 BT AEN
to be deductible for tax purposes. HA® -
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The provisional goodwill arising from the above acquisition
is determined on a provisional basis as the Group is in
the process of completing the independent valuation to
assess the provisional fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired. It may be adjusted upon the completion of initial
accounting year which shall not exceed one year from the

acquisition date.

36. WIEKIB AR (E&)
(a) (#&)

R SR A B T AR
BEAET  RAKREEEEES
ST EIART R BT AR SR 2 2 B
BATE - REEHEEREH
(B AR R R TBE—%) 7
BRI -

HK$ 000
FHET
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: Wl PR E A 2 BB R AR
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (15,300
Bank balances and cash acquired BB 2 SRITEBRRIRS 104
Net cash outflow in respect of BRAWEFullpay 2 RE R F5E
the acquisition of Fullpay (15,196)

The acquisition-related costs are insignificant and have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and

recognised in profit or loss.

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

No revenue is recognised by Fullpay during the year ended
31 March 2018. Included in the loss for the year ended 31
March 2018 is loss of HK$2,215,000 attributable to Fullpay.

Had the acquisition of Fullpay been effected at the
beginning of the year, the amount of the loss for the
year would have been HK$499,417,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed at the beginning of the year,

noris it intended to be a projection of future results.

WEBARRARR AL N E AR HE R ATEE
REFFHIR - TRIBRPHER -

WIEHASEER o TE

REE-_ZT—\F=ZA=+—8LItF
E ' FullpayW ERERWZ - BHZE—
- NFEZA=+—HLFEZEE
I:P

B IEFullpay FE{h 2 E5182,215,000
7T

o

o

firl W B8 Fullpay — B R A F E F
M7  AIFABRESER A
499,417,000 7T - BEE ERHEM
BAZA - BT —ERBRERERASE
EFUTR2BER T RSB ERES
EI 2 EEEE - I ETRBIAR RS

=4
17 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

On 29 June 2016, the Group acquired entire equity

interests in the Topack Group together with the loan

from an ex-shareholder, from a connected person to the
Group, at a total consideration of HK$1,109,156,000. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition

method. The Topack Group is engaged in property

investments and provision of property management

services in Guangzhou, the PRC. The Topack Group was

acquired so as to enlarge the Group's investment property

portfolio in Guangzhou, the PRC.

(b]

36. WIEKIB AR (Z&)

RZZE—REASNAZTIE - X&H
MEEA T WBEERERE 2 25
EERRE —ZAIRRZER  #R
B21,109,156,000%8 7T ° WIEWKEE
ERWEEAR - EREERPEE
MR EMERE RREYE SRR
%o WEBEREESEBRAREER
HEIEMT 2 IREWEES °

Total
]
HK$'000
FHET

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised RUKER KB EERBERZAENT

at the date of acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment e = YN 3,924
Investment properties REME 2,553,039
Other receivables H A fE O RIE 12
Available-for-sale investment AHIHERE 55,140
Bank balances and cash RITHEB R E 3,062
Other payables and accruals H b eI R EETE A (102,062)
Loan from an ex-shareholder RE—F AR ZE R (252,831)
Tax payable e I8 (40,692)
Bank borrowings RITIERK (926,947)
Deferred tax liabilities BEIEHIAAE (533,681
Net assets BEFE 758,964
Consideration on acquisition WEEKE 1,109,156
Consideration on acquisition WEER(E 1,109,156
Less: Loan from an ex-shareholder B RE—RARREZER (252,831)
Less: Net assets recognised W BmRZEEFE (758,964)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHERTE & 2 8 97,361
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of the Topack Group
because the cost of the combination included future

market development of the Topack Group.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected

to be deductible for tax purposes.

36. WIEKIB AR (E&)

(%)
RREHRABREAEERETS
TR WRBEEREEELRE -

B IRN BT E L Z BT AIEN
B °

HK$'000
THT
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHERTE & 2 R & FE ¢
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (1,109,156)
Bank balances and cash acquired BEWBEZ RITHEB IR E 3,062
Net cash outflow in respect of BRANENE AR 2 Re R FE
the acquisition of subsidiaries (1,106,094)

The Group paid deposit of HK$100,000,000 as at 31 March
2016 for the acquisition of the Topack Group. The remaining
consideration of approximately HK$1,009,156,000 was
settled in June 2016 upon completion. Net cash outflow
in respect of the acquisition of the Topack Group during
the year ended 31 March 2017 was approximately
HK$1,006,094,000.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$2,115,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and included in the "administrative expenses” line item in

profit or loss.

R—ZZTE—XR"EF=ZA=+—H ' K
SEERKEEHEEZMTS
100,000,000 8 7T - K E 82 88 &
1,009,156,000 % ot B R FE K & £
ZE-RERNARKE  cREBEZ=ZT
—tF=ZA=+—BLEFE BH
WEENEE 2R RLFEOA
1,006,094,00058 7T

2,115,000 7o 2 WS FEBE A A B #

PrEEAED SR - ARNBRZ (17
KRS | — TR RER ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\FZA=t—RLFE

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 is
loss of HK$14,955,000 attributable to the Topack Group,
excluding the impairment of HK$96,791,000 on goodwill
arising from acquisition of the Topack Group. Revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2017 includes HK$41,211,000 is
attributable to the Topack Group.

Had the acquisition of the Topack Group been effected
at the beginning of the year ended 31 March 2017, the
total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 would have been HK$97,954,000, and the amount
of the profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 would
have been HK$1,219,686,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed at the beginning of the year
ended 31 March 2017, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.

In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and profit of
the Group had the Topack Group been acquired at the
beginning of the year ended 31 March 2017, the directors
of the Company calculated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment based on the recognised amounts
of property, plant and equipment at the date of the
acquisition.

During the year ended 31 March 2017,
recognised an impairment losses of HK$96,791,000 on

the Group

the goodwill arising from acquisition of the Topack Group
due to management’s previous expectation on expected
market development of the properties market in the PRC

could not be met.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

36. WIEKIB AR (Z&)

(b]

(%)
WIRHAEEER 2 TE

BHE-_T—+tF=A=+—HItF
Emﬂ*a%%ﬁ%l%ngﬁ
14,955,000% 7T - TEERBERE
EFTEERE 2R ME6,791,000%

ToBE_T—LHF=-A=+—H
LFEERATEREEREEGZ
41,211,000 7T -

WEEREE —SEREBE_S—t
F=ZA=+—HIEFEEVET  BIE
EER-_T—tF=A=+—HIF
&2 B A FE 597,954,0008 7T © 1
HE-_Z—+HF=-A=+—HILFE
S & EBIEA1,219,686,000/8 7T © &
ZERHEHFAZA - T —E R
EWEREE-_E—+E=A=1+—
BIEFEFYITZRZERTASEEE
BRSEIZMARKEELS - T
BETEBIR R AR -

RETERHEEREBEEZE_T—+F
ZAZT-HLEFEFONRBZBER
TAKEZ [BE WA R - A

NAEFEERRYE - ESERRERN
WEERAZEHAELE  StEWE -

Bz MR ZITE -

REE-T—tF=A=F+—HILF
E ARELEREEBUTENE
iz HEREZAMBH - ks
st SRR EATE L 2 ERER
SBEETIE96,791,000/8 T o



36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c]

On 30 March 2017, the Group acquired the entire equity
interests in BMMHRWEEAR A A ("Guangzhou City
Xin Yu Shang Mao Co, Ltd") ("Xin Yu"], from independent
third parties at a total consideration of RMB228,702,000
(or equivalent to HK$258,129,000]). This acquisition has
been accounted for using the acquisition method. Xin Yu is
engaged in property investments in Guangzhou, the PRC.
For enlarging the Group's investment property portfolio in
Guangzhou and securing recurring stable income for the

Group, the Group acquired Xin Yu.

(c)

36. WIEKIB AR (E&)

RZZT—tF=A=+H ~5EM
BUFE=FWEBMNMFINEEZER
RARI(THR]) 2 2 ERE - B
BA ARH228,702,0007C (HEE R
258,129,000 7T)  LLIBUEEE I A
WEEEARR - TREZERHBEEMN™T
MEMERE - REFEWEIRE - #
HEARNEERBEMZILEYEAE
RIEG LT MRS

Total
]
HK$'000
FAT
Assets acquired and liabilities R H BN E 2 EE RERZ
recognised at the date of BEWMT
acquisition are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment W WIBERRE 593
Investment properties REYE 276,862
Prepaid lease payment TEAEERMNK 29,597
Other receivables H h fE IR I 885
Bank balances and cash RITEBR R ® 1,497
Other payables and accruals H A JE A R0TE K e R B (2,768)
Deferred tax liabilities BEBEAE (66,908)
Net assets BEFE 239,758
Consideration on acquisition WERE 258,129
Consideration on acquisition W EERE 258,129
Less: Net assets recognised W BmRZEEFE (239,758)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEPTE & 2 8 18,371
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c]

[Continued]

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Xin Yu because the cost
of the combination included future market development of
the Xin Yu.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected

to be deductible for tax purposes.

36. WIEKIB AR (Z&)

(c)

(%)
BN A GFECA B IR R R K 45 3%
B BRBHRELRE -

TR BB P E A 2 B A /R
B -

HK$'000
FHT
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEBFTE & 2 IR &M FEE
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (258,129)
Bank balances and cash acquired BB RITEMR RIS 1,497
Net cash outflow in respect of EHAKERB AR 2R RL 5
the acquisition of subsidiaries (256,632)

The acquisition-related costs are insignificant and have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and

recognised in profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2017,
recognised an impairment losses of HK$18,787,000 on the

the Group

goodwill arising from acquisition of Xin Yu due to unstable
economic condition, which led to the previous expectation
on expected market development of the properties market
in the PRC could not be met.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

WK AL T ER R E IS
RETHIR - TRERDHER ©

RBE_ZT—tF=A=1+—HLF
B - HRRBERR T RESHEEE

BHPEMETIS cMHER KR
B MAKEREBHRAELZ

EEERIREEE18,787,000/8 7T ©

¢



37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

37. AREE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —FtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT THTT
Amounts granted in respect of W — QR
guarantees given to the bank for EmRITIRMHERT R T
facilities granted to an associate k- - 75,000
Amounts utilised in respect of H—HEE R MEEE
guarantees given to the bank for FERITIREERMEN A
facilities granted to an associate s o - 27,300
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value RARREERR RZTE—tF=A
of the financial guarantee is insignificant as at 31 March 2017. =T —EHZUBERZAFELTERK -
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the associate had default BHEZZT-/\F=A=1+—HILFE %
its repayment to the bank and the Company settled the entire BEARIEREAERZRITZHIE - M
outstanding indebtedness amounting to HK$25,500,000, owed RNR A EARIE M SR B N 5 2
by the associate to the bank under the financial guarantee. N AAREEZIRTT 2 B2 525,500,000
The bank released the respective financial guarantee contract BT - HIg % RITE MR BRI B ERE

subsequently.

[F]
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38. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group had property
rental income of approximately HK$129, 604,000 (2017:
HK$57,899,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases with fixed rents in respect of premises which

would fall due as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E=Z— \F=A=+—HIFE

8. BEHY
AEBEEREHEA

HE_Z—\F=ZA=1+—HLFE &
%IZ%¥miWAmﬁmaw4mmﬁm
—T—+% :57,899,00087T) °

RERAR - AREHETAIHEZLZ
BH(HEERR) - BRMEZRKRE
HENFUREZZBMBEMT

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —F—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Within one year —F R 205,911 51,338
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZENF(BREEERSE) 508,268 126,324
After five years AF% 243,611 79,270
957,790 256,932

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the
Group from leasing of its investment properties. Typically,
leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term
of one to fifteen years (31 March 2017: one to fifteen years).
Certain leases include contingent rentals calculated with
reference to turnover of the tenants.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

REMENFERNESEREREMERK
BWiEE - —KRims HEDKHE - BE
EEETBY A —ETHEF (=Tt
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38. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 38. REMLH (&)

The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —ZT—+tF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET

Minimum lease payments paid under REBZEHEOT 2

operating leases: KRB ERK
Land and buildings T RIEF 4,175 4,548
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments REIREIR - AEE A DA L&
for future minimum lease payments in respect of rented BE - PREEMEZ RRKEBRERMRK
premises under non-cancellable operating leases which fall AEZEIBHBENT

due as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT
Within one year —F R 2,606 2,973
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZENF(BREEERSE) 2,497 2,938
5,103 5,911
Leases are negotiated for lease term of one to two years (2017: FEZBOFHRA—ZEMFE(ZE—+
one to two years) and rentals are fixed over the terms of the F:—EWF)  MESEHELOHRNEE -

leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

39.

40.

41.

—N\FZA=t—RLFE

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered
into agreements with the vendor and paid deposits of
RMB92,375,000 (or equivalent to HK$108,626,000) (31 March
2017: RMB50,000,000 (or equivalent to HK$57,710,000]) for
renovation and decoration of the investment properties held by
the Group in the PRC which RMB23,027,000 (or equivalent to
HK$27,078,000) (31 March 2017: RMB47,546,000 (or equivalent
to HK$54,878,000])) was capitalised in investment properties.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group paid deposits
of RMB210,317,000 (or equivalent to HK$237,378,000) for
acquisition of interests in investments. The acquisition was
terminated during the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
deposits were fully refunded subsequent to the year ended 31
March 2018.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were
pledged by the Group to secure banking and other financing
facilities:

39. WEBEREWMEZTS

40.

41.

REE-_Z—-N\F=ZA=+—BIFE -
AREBHEBEAHLHZLEZFTE A
R # 92,375,000t ( =k 48 & 72 108,626,000
BTN ZZE—tF=ZF=+—8: AR
#% 50,000,000 7T ( =k 48 & 7 57,710,000 &
T EBFEEELAEBRPERBEEZ
wEME - ZH ARE23,027,0007T (3%
FEE 27,078,000 L) (ZE—tF=A
=+—08: AR¥47,546,0007T(SHABER
54,878,000 70 ) ) B MR E M E AL, -

BAEE

REE-_Z—+F=-A=L—HIFE
KﬁleﬁzmTé/\E% 210,317,000( 8k
#8E 7 237,378,000 7T ) fE IR EE 1% & #E
HeopWEEREBEE-_TS—\F=ZA=F
—HBAIEFEERIE ﬁﬁ;ZnTiEEA%Zify
—N\F=A=1T—HILFEEKRER

EERR

REHRR - AEEHTHEERITIER
HRTRAMBEERE ZERF

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Investments in securities FEHEE 138,217 110,835
Investment properties AW 10,360,347 9,168,312
Investment properties classified as DERBIEHERE

asset held for sales "EME 196,000 =
Properties held for sale FHEHE Y - 1,035,389
10,694,564 10,314,536

Note: As at 31 March 2018, included in the investment in securities et - R-ZZE—N\E=ZA=+—8 " tkAH

pledged by the Group to secure other financing facilities
was certain of the Group's equity interest in Rosedale
with market value of HK$59,065,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$61,280,000) based on the quoted price from the Stock
Exchange on 31 March 2018.
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HREEEERZASERKIFESH
BEF  BEASEMFEETHE
BeiE  HMERBIARZ=ZZT—N
F=A=+—HZ#HEA59,065000
BT(ZE—+FE=A=+—8:
61,280,000/ 7T) °



42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued share capital, retained profits and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a reqular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues, new borrowings raised and repayment of borrowings.

42. BEXRE R EE

AEEZEAEERERASEASER
ARBETALE  FAREBEETEE
EREDSEBERARRTERZALR - N
BrEERBEEFERSIZ -

AEBZERRBREBRRARAES
ABGER(BREDSETRAE - REEF
R &R

ARREBREHMRIEARE - FRZR
A—#n  ARREZEEEARARALE
BEAZHABRR -REARFEEZ
& AREREBRIRERS - BITHAR
IRERREERER WTFEEEBER
ZRHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR I EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 43. BT A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) BT ERER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Financial assets BgEE
Fair value through profit or loss B FESRIETA Bz
- Investments held for trading —BIEEEIRE 81,000 48,909
Available-for-sale financial assets — B {5 B 7 & 245,485 193,388
Loans and receivables EAREWE
- Trade and other receivables —B 5 KEMEWIE 61,297 269,073
- Amounts due from associates — JE UK & N B IR - 46,511
- Amount due from a joint venture  —ER—RI&EDERIA - 31,345
- Short-term loans receivable —EWIEEIER 57,000 57,000
- Bank balances and cash —IRITEBR KRS 462,363 140,865
580,660 544,794
Total @t 907,145 787,091

Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ#sE R ATIR > BB E B

Other payables H b JE A FE 125,404 294,312
Borrowings B2 5,723,897 4,609,934
5,849,301 4,904,246
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are set out in
note 43(a) above and details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

[i] Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may
arise from a customer or counterparty’s failure to
meet its obligation. The Group’s major credit risks
arise from financial assets classified as trade and
other receivables, short-term loans receivable and

distressed debt assets.

The Group implements the following measures to

mitigate credit risk:

e In respect of credit exposures to tenants, credit
risk exposure is minimised by undertaking
transactions with a large number of
counterparties and conducting credit reviews
on prospective tenants. The Group also has
policies in place to ensure that rental security
deposits are required from tenants prior to

commencement of leases;

43. WBITR(E)
(b) BA%EREBREE B RN B

RNEEZ EEHHTAHFR LW
E43la)  REMBIAFBETRE
PHEEHEER - TXHEIEZEFMBIA
Bz B RRRZE R 2 BUR -
EREBEBVEEZERAR - UBR
K2 e 08 Rkt SR BN GE H“Z?EI i

li] 1ZEER

FERREREFIRSHTF
BAOMERNELEREE - AK
BzX2EERBRIIREDR
REHREMERFR - B
RHRERRTREBEEZY
BEE -

RNEBEEUA T AR EAR
EE bk

s HRABEFPMmMERZEER
RMmE > BERXERS
HFETXZREERP
ETEREEMBEER
BB ERE - REB IR
BRRAEREFPREE
FIRABRESRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\FZA=t—RLFE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies [Continued)]

[i] Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of credit exposures to short-term
loans receivable, credit risk exposure is
minimised by referencing to external credit
rating information to manage the credit quality
of counterparties, and selecting counterparties
with acceptable credit quality and repayment

ability to balance credit risk and return; and

In respect of distressed debt assets, credit risk
exposure is minimised by obtaining effective
collateral from distressed debt assets. The
Group also timely evaluating the recoverability
of the distressed debt assets and obtaining
legal advice regarding the legal status of the

distressed debt assets.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks and with good reputation.

lii] Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to amounts due from associates
(see note 26), available-for-sale investments
(see note 22), short-term loans receivable (see
note 25) and fixed-rate bank deposits and bank
and other borrowings (see notes 28 and 32).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk primarily relate to bank balances and
variable-rate borrowings (see notes 28 and 32).
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43. BT A(E)
(b) MBEEBREEEEREE(E)

lil 1ZERER

% (&)
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FEERRME  EB2E
SMERERRIRER - B
HPHFERBRTUE
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{5 7K R fE5& BE A
FEE A E R R E A R
SHHF  UERKRIEERE

FEERR : &
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EERRME  BBAET

REKEEREBERZE
HRABREEERR - &
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BEZ AT e A R K st
TNREBEE AR
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EEZRT BRBEEZEER
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)]

lii] Market risk (Continued]

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued]

The Group maintains variable rate borrowings.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
monitor interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR, the
prime lending rate arising from the Group's
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings and
People's Bank of China benchmark lending rate
arising from the Group's RMB denominated
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk, the
sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate short-term loans
receivable and variable-rate borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the
relevant asset and liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2017:
50 basis points] higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 would
increase/decrease by HK$10,845,000 (2017:
post-tax profit for the year decrease/increase by
HK$8,717,000).

43. I TR (&E)
(b) EEREEEERBEKE)

lii) 5 REE (&)

(i) FI=ERE)
REBHEFZBMER - &K
E@HH‘JIEW < SR L

o SR E@l’ﬁk? bl
T“iﬁﬂ& WeEnnE

Hv%)ﬁﬂ/ﬁiﬂiﬁﬂzfz@ﬁ g

AEBZEREERENERE
REFEERRNIREEET
STEBRZBEBRITRE
HEEX - KEELBTE
BzERZEBEET
ERAEEUARKEE
ZERZPBEARRITE
EEENEZKE

BURE DT

¢EE%7;\L§7’F‘J?J—LAW

X BRBRE ST
$E<?J%E/\EE#EE§Q3E}%E§TZ
FEDT A T A ) & =Bz i 8
E o BENE B EEBE R
MZBERMmME - &I
THR A& FR R HA K 2 4E 8
BERKEEZABERER
REEFEANFEERE
EMAER o #5hn5R 450
EAREERREEBEHT X
ZEBEEBEIEL 2T
fil o

fisg ) R 8 0,3 4> 50 fE &

B(ZT— 1% 50fEE
B MPTAEME %(”E
BIE  KEEEE

—A¢£H£+—H¢¢
B2 REEBRBIEMN, R
4>10,845,000 T (= &
—+F  FABEEF
B/ 48 hn 8,717,000 7
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\FZA=t—RLFE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies [Continued)]

lii] Market risk (Continued]

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the cash flow interest rate risk of bank balances
is considered insignificant and therefore no

sensitivity analysis is presented.

Price risk on investments held for trading

The Group is primarily exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in investments
held for trading. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity

instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks of listed securities included investments
held for trading at the reporting date.

If the share prices of the respective equity
investments had been 20% (2017: 20%) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's post-tax loss for the year would
decrease/increase by HK$13,527,000 (2017:
post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$8,168,000]) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments held for

trading.

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

43. BT A(E)
(b) MHEEREREERREEK (&)

lii) 5% R B

(i)

(ii)

% (&)
M= E (42)
GREDT (&)

ARTEERA BT
%2 BeREFEARL
TEA - H2 5) G
BAH -

RIFEERETZERA

7a
oo
AA

AEBRKRENFIEEER
REEBER  T2EEKRA
ERER  BERESEBHE
FARREBKREZEHEE
BZER - NEEZEA
(B 1% 2 i = 22 5= o 0 A Bt
RFFREZBRATEA -

BURE DT

TXZBRE D TIRE
REHRBHFARERR
REZETREFEHZK
AEBRERETE -

A RN E 2 BB +
FOTF%20%(=ZF—+

F:20%) - MATA EAM
BEERETE  AKEZ

FERNREERBRFEE
BEREZ N EZHMR
4 /¥ $113,527,000 % 7T

—tF  FARRE

F #1200, 6 48,168,000
BT o



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies [Continued)]

liii] Currency risk

[iv]

The functional currency of the Company and its
major subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollars [("HK$") in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currency of those
subsidiaries operating in the PRC is Renminbi
("RMB"] in which most of its transactions are

denominated.

The Group has foreign currency balances which
expose the Group to foreign currency risks, however,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
foreign currency risk is not significant as the amount
of foreign currency balances is not material and

therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of the borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

43. BT A(E)
(b) MHEEREREERREEK (&)

liii] BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE=%

—N\F=ZRA=t—RLFE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies [Continued)]

liv] Liquidity risk (Continued]

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, other borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
lender choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at

the end of reporting period.

43. BT A(E)
(b) MHEEREREERREEK (&)

liv] ZEE&Ez%

% (&)

TREJIAEEENTETKE
B2 TEHNEEHE - TR
RIBRNANEE A ERERZ
RPERAH U BAGBZRE
RReRemEMK - AEM
T BEREXREERIXZH
ERGTAREERSAME
i B RN IR 12 1T (8 E A A
Z ARt - HM3EST AT BB
BRI BRME 2 BNE
REKE - TREEMNERAS
ZHRERE o WA BRELRT
BEHE - RIABRBmEIR 2 F =
SHERBRIR G o

Liquidity tables MEBE SR
Contractual
weighted Less than Total  Carrying
average  Imonthsor I months 1-5 Over undiscounted amount
interestrate  ondemand  to1year years Syears  cashflows at31.3.2018
-0
aKNE  JW=@R  =BAZ #¥RBE ZAZt-R
THE  ARERE -§  -F1f  @BIF BEE  BEE
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HKH'000  HK$'000  HKH'000  HK$'000
% Tin TEn Tin Tin TR Tin
2018 5-N\f
Non-derivative financial liabilties FEHBAR
Other payables AT - 125,404 - - - 125,404 125,404
Borrowings B3 110 640,121 503295 4664317 1121268 6929001 5723897
765,525 503,295  466431T 1121268 7,054,405 5,849,301
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

liv] Liquidity risk (Continued)]
Liquidity tables (Continued]

Contractual

weighted Less than

43. I T E(EZ)
(b) BEEMREEEEREE (Z)

liv] BEER R (&)

nBETKE)

Total  Carrying

average  Imonthsor I months 1-5 Over  undiscounted amount
interestrate  ondemand  tolyear years Syears  cash flows 4t 31.3.2017
RE-tF
abmg  JN=ER =A% AERRE =A=1-H
THHE  SRERE - -EhE  BBRE RSME  BEE
% HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKEOO  HKSO00  HK$000
% Ter  TEn TR TR TEn  TER
017 “E-tE
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEHKEE
Other payables BEATE - 296312 - - - 296,312 294,312
Borrowings 3% 857 306,712 W98 4298114 M1 5693566 4,609,934
Financial quarantee contracs IR - 27300 - - - 27300
628,324 41961 429814 TeTTT 6015176 4904246

Other borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less
than 3 months” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these other borrowings amounted to HK$34,100,000
and HK$31,000,000 respectively. Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the directors of the
Company do not believe that it is probable that the
lender will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate payment.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies [Continued)]

liv] Liquidity risk (Continued]

Liquidity tables (Continued]

The undiscounted cash flows on financial guarantee
contracts have been categorised into time bands
based on the earliest date the bank borrowings
obtained by an associate are due for repayment in
accordance with loan repayment schedule agreed

with respective lenders.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the

[l guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit

losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined

at the end of the reporting period.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

(i}

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their

fair values.

The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

43. I T E(E)

(c)

BB TR AFETE

li] 32 FFLAAE M BB fe 1 F

EBilt EZHMBEERYME
BENFHE

ARREER/EAEMBERE
NIRESHA AN BR 2 BT 15 B
kB aERaERLRFE
EES

HiMBEERMBABEZR
FETDRIBELNREERA AR
RBEEREDNERE -

MBEEEMBABE IR FERAT

FRERE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

lii) A&t RZE N FlEE

lii] Fair value of the Group's financial assets

that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The disclosures of fair value
measurements as shown above use a fair value
hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

e Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement
date;

BIAEBYBEEERF
=]

RFETRFER TS 2R
EXERRBERFRRGTHERE
HERRAERAESE
Z B - EXFIRRAFERFE
R E DR AR FERR - B
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued]

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

lii] Fair value of the Group's financial assets

that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

e Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

e Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The Group's investments in listed equity interests
in held-for-trading investments are measured at
fair value (Level 1 inputs) at the end of the reporting
period. The Group’'s distressed debt assets in
available-for-sale are measured at fair value (level 3
inputs] at the end of the reporting period. There was

no transfers amongst Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of the other financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the results and financial position of the Group

approximate their respective fair values.
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44. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows

as cash flows from financing activities.

4h. MEFEMELEBENHEE

TR AKERELBAELRENE
BifE  HneRReRIFRSEH - B
BRPMELABARECRNARES
RAKEGZERERE
FELRTRENRESRE -

BHERAMAERD

Interest Bank and other
payables borrowings Total
EARE  S|OREMER @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

[Note 30) [Note 32)

(Ktat30) (Ktet32)
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMA—H 33,737 4,609,934 4,643,671
Financing cash flows HEREME (423,076) 757,643 334,567
Interest expenses B 424,378 - 424,378

Liabilities classified as held NERFEHE

for sale (note 29) ZBEHH29) - (116,984) (116,984)
Exchange realignment R - 473,304 473,304
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\F=A=+—H 35,039 5,723,897 5,758,936
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the 2014 annual general
meeting of the Company on 18 September 2014 ("Adoption
Date”), the Company has adopted a new share option scheme
(the "2014 Share Option Scheme”]. Under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme, the Board may grant options to directors
and employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters
and service providers of any members of the Group who the
board of directors considers have contributed or will contribute
or can contribute to the Group. The purpose of the 2014 Share
Option Scheme is to provide participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefits of the Company and its

shareholders as a whole.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”] must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the 2014
Share Option Scheme (or as at the date of approval of the
refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit by the shareholders
of the Company]. Apart from the 2014 Share Option Scheme,
the Company has no other share option scheme in force.
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 13
September 2016, the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit
was approved by the shareholders. Pursuant to the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit, the directors have been authorised
to grant options to subscribe up to 505,671,489 shares,
representing approximately 4.91% of the issued shares as at
the date of this report. Further to the foregoing, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2014 Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue

from time to time.
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Under the 2014 Share Option Scheme, the options which may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period are not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue,
without prior approval from the Company’'s shareholders.
Options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

An offer of options shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days. An option shall be deemed to have been
granted and accepted when the acceptance together with a
payment of HK$1.00 is received by the Company. The option
period is determined by the Board at the time of making an
offer which shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of

grant.

The 2014 Share Option Scheme does not specify a minimum
period for which an option must be held nor a performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised. However, the terms of the 2014 Share Option
Scheme provide that the Board may determine, at its sole
discretion, such term(s) on the grant of an option, which
decision may vary on a case by case basis. The exercise price is
determined by the Board, and will not be less than the higher
of the closing price of the Company shares on the date of grant
or the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant or the nominal

value of the share of the Company.

Subject to the provisions of the 2014 Share Option Scheme,
the 2014 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date, after
which period no further options shall be offered or granted.

No options were granted since the adoption of 2014 Share
Option Scheme up to the date of issuance of these consolidated

financial statements.
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46. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF")
scheme for qualifying employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme subject to a maximum of HK$1,500

per month, which contribution is matched by employees.

The Group's employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$1,846,000 (2017:
HK$1,957,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current year. As at 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017, no contribution was due in
respect of the reporting period had not been paid over to these

schemes.
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47.TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH

RELATED PARTIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company has settled all outstanding
indebtedness owed by an associate and the bank released the
financial guarantee contracts guaranteed by the Company to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the associate (2017:
HK$75,000,000).

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

47.

EBEEALETZIXEREER

R-T—NF=ZA=+—8 ' ARFEHE
BEHEBERR RN EREER
I8 - MIRITE BEBR A A Al gt — BB & A A
BEHNETRITHEELBEROMBER
A#H(=ZF—+4 : 75,000,00087T) °

FTEEE A SR

B R E TEE KBNS H
mF

2018 2017

—E-N\EFE —T—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET TET

Short-term benefits ySEEER 8,346 8,083
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIFT B

contributions 139 131

8,485 8,214

The remuneration of directors and key executives of the Group
is recommended by the remuneration committee having regard

to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant
transactions with related parties during the year or significant

balances with them at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ =T —N\F=A=+—HIEFE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

48. XATMBMRRAR HEERBE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZIEE 7,594,437 7,502,482
Amount due from joint venture fEUR A & ¥R - 5,713
Club debenture BATES 1,330 1,330
7,595,767 7,509,525
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE
Other receivables o e R IE 188 23,449
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NG E ] 47,036 42,902
Investments held for trading FIEEERE 2,144 502
Bank balances and cash RITER KRS 37 682
49,405 67,535
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Other payables and accruals L e AN R K A E 47,042 38,746
Amount due to subsidiaries JE AR BB A B 5B 1,705,539 1,700,794
Borrowings - due within one year B ——FAEHE 157,100 171,000
1,909,681 1,910,540
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEEFEE (1,860,276) (1,843,005)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEBERRE
LIABILITIES afE 5,735,491 5,666,520
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARREE
Share capital R X 2,059,638 2,059,638
Share premium and reserves [note] {7 (8 R (ML) 1,151,153 1,507,492
TOTAL EQUITY TSP 3,210,791 3,567,130
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY El e UN=E
Borrowings - due after one year B ——F &3 2,524,700 2,099,390
5,735,491 5,666,520
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  48. XA R MBEMRR R #EERBE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)] (%)
Retained
Capital profits
Share  Contributed  redemption (accumulated Total
premium surplus reserve loss) reserves
CENAE RE A
B E EQaHn R (RAER) R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TR TAT TAT TR TAR

At 1 April 2016 RZZE—~ENA—H 2,390,935 78,913 592 257,656 2,728,096
Issue of shares BTG 224,743 = = = 224,743
Bonus issue BTAR (1,029,819) - - - (1,029.819)
Transaction cost attributable to BRI R R

issue of share and scrip share FEERBBA (26,332] = = = (26,332)
Loss and total comprehensive EREBER2ERYEE

expense for the year - - - (260,266) (260,266)
Dividend recognised as distribution ~ EHERAD K S 22,771 = - (151,701) (128,930)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 1,582,298 78,913 592 (154,311) 1,507,492
Loss and total comprehensive EREBER2ERYEE

expense for the year - - - (356,339) (356,339)
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-\F=ZA=+—H 1,582,298 78,913 592 (510,650) 1,151,153
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##E =T —\F=A=1+—HIEFE

TEMEDRZFHE
—N\FZA=t-BR-B—LF

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March M=%

188

2018 and 31 March 2017 are as follows: ZA=+—H ARAEFEWBRRZF
BT
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary registration Class of shares held registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
iR/ BRORERRE/ ARAREL
it K BRME FERGER ifEx RRRRENLA E2 3
2018 2017
22-)\f “Ttf
Directly Indirectly ~ Directly  Indirectly
Ei & Bi Bk
BNEERERRARAT PRC Registered capital  US$17,180,000 - 100% - 100% Development of
[note b)(Hite) hE BEEAR 7,180,000%% properties for sale
REMZIHE
BNTHEEZERAE PRC Registered capital ~ RMB20,000,000 - 100% - 100% Investment in
[note c/(Witc) il BRAEE ARH20,000,0007 distressed asset
RETREAE
BMmaEm R EERAA PRC Registered capital ~ RMB65,000,000 - 100% - 100% Property investments
[note c/(Witc) hE BaftEx ARRH65,000,0007C NERE
BNTHAZEEERLE PRC Registered capital ~ RMB30,000,000 - 100% - 100% Property investments
Inote c/(Hitc) hEl Biftax ABRH50,000,0007 VESE
Xin Yu fnote ¢/ PRC Registered capital ~ RMB10,300,000 - 100% - 100% Property investments
nRkc) hE BaftEx AR#10,300,0007C NERE
Gao Jie [note ¢/ PRC Registered capital ~ RMB500,000 - 100% = 100% Property investments
wl(Hic) hEl Biftax ARH500,0007T VESE
Ren Xun fnote ¢/ PRC Registered capital ~ RMB1,000,000 - 100% - 100% Investment in
(i) HE ERfER ARI1,000,0007 distressed asset
RETREE
Master Glory Group Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,100,000,200 - 100% = 100% Investment holding
Management Limited B 5% non-voting HK$#,000,000 RERK
HEEEERARLE deferred shares 1,100,000, 2007
[note af 6,000, 00077
EER
MERTE
B (Hita)
Smartmedia Ltd. BVI Ordinary US$130,000 - 100% - 100% Property investments
RERABE EER 13000057 NERE
WERHDABKBEERAE PRC Registered capital ~ RMBT6,980,000 - 59.75% - 59.75% Water supply business
[note b)(Hi2b) hE Biftax ABRH76,980,0007 fkxH
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49.

50.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
[Continued]

Notes:

(a] The holders of the 5% non-voting deferred shares are not entitled
to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meetings of
the company. The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
rights to dividends or to participate in any distribution on winding

up.

[b) These companies are registered in the form of foreign investment
enterprises.

(c) These companies are registered in the form of wholly owned
enterprise in the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the result of the Group for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group at the end of the year.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, result in particular of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of
the Group's subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests
are material to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, therefore, the financial information in respect of
those subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests are not
presented.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with current year's presentation. These reclassification have no
effect on financial position, loss for the year or cash flows of the
Group.

49. TEMBRRZFHE(F

50.

Hiat
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b HEATUSNERELETRER -

(c) ZEQRRRPENAEZELETAZR -

ERINB 2 AEBEHBRR - DARBE
ERREIBFELAEEFAREXBRA
SEFREEFEBAMBAZAR ° AR
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FREBEMNBRARBRITEMNERRES

ARREERR  ARERENEQFE
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51. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 31 May 2018, the Company entered into a non-legal binding
memorandum of understanding with an independent third
party on the disposal of certain issued share capital of Ally
Fortune Investments Limited together with its subsidaries,
(the “Target Group”) which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the "Proposed Disposal”]. The Target Group is
principally engaged in the development of real estate in the
PRC and is holding certain property interests in a building in
Guangzhou, the PRC. Detailed terms and conditions, including
the consideration, of the Proposed Disposal will be subject
to further negotiation between the parties thereto and the
entering into of a formal agreement. For details, please refer to
the Company's announcement dated 31 May 2018. No definitive
agreement in relation to the Proposed Disposal has been
entered into up to the date of the issuance of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Financial Summary

LSS

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and AEEREBE_ZEZ-N\F=RA=1+—HIAE
liabilities of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 March 2018 FESFHREEBURBERBEZHREHR
is set out below: TX:

(a) Results (a) ¥4

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ZFmF ZF-AF DT AF ZFtF ZB-N\F
HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$°000
TET FHT TET FHET TERx

Revenue WA 26,721 120,052 25,852 85,792 1,150,672

(Loss) profit for the year from REHELLERS 2

continuing operations FR(ERE)RF (108,584) (87,582) (146,680) 1,222,155 (497,835)
Profit for the year from REBKIEEEER 2
discontinued operation FREH S = - - -
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) & (108,584) (87,582)  (146,680) 1,222,155 (497,835)
Attributable to: AT AT RE(S
Owners of the Company ARREEA (102,015) (75,325)  (135,774) 1,220,221 (502,839)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE{RRkiES (6,569) (12,257) (10,906) 1,934 5,004
(108,584) (87,582) (146,680) 1,222,155 (497,835)
(b) Assets and liabilities (b) EERAE
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

—E-NFE —T-—hHF —T—RF —T—+F ZB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FTHET

Total assets BEHEE 4,989,820 5,982,058 6,905,184 12,435,804 12,623,049
Total liabilities BEL%E (1,756,501) (2,720,080) (3,169,118) (7,409,910) (7,744,308)

3,233,319 3,261,978 3,736,066 5,025,894 4,878,741

Equity attributable to AT AL bR
Owners of the Company Vi/NGIETZEUN 2,373,723 2,435,442 2,923,382 4,982,702 4,826,758
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 859,596 826,536 812,684 43,192 51,983

3,233,319 3,261,978 3,736,066 5,025,894 4,878,741
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Major Properties Information

TEYEEH

The Group's property portfolio summary — major properties held for

investment.

Location

ih 2

Certain floors of A-Mall,
No. 70 Zhongshan Fifth

Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province, the PRC
(the "A-Mall”)
hEEREBEMTEERER

F1 L B EK705%A-Malls T E
([A-Mall])

The whole of 1st to 6th floors of
Golden Plaza, Nos. 11 and 13

Huangsha Avenue, Liwan District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,

the PRC
R EN T E R

BEOARBINRISREC RS IEZERE

Various units and car parking
spaces of Podong Plaza,

No. 1 Guigang Road,

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
TEEREEMNTEER
EiEAF R RIARES

& T B RFEEA

Certain units and car parking
spaces of No. 22 Pan Fu Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
REEREEMN TSR
BRI 225 A T E AL RizE (L

Nos. 430, 432 and 434,

Hui Fu East Road,

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
B ER A BN TS R R
430 ~ 4324345

Master Glory Group Limited SIESEAFR AT

Existing use

BEAR

Shops and
offices

EEGDE VN

Shops
2 A

Offices and
car parking
spaces

WMREREBEL

Shops and
car parking
spaces

A R R B L

Shops
k]

AEBEMEEAEME—REREZIEYE -

Tenure Group’s interest (%)
EizR:t AEBEZERE (%)
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
Medium to long 100% 100%
term lease
R EATE A
Medium term 100% 100%
lease
FREIFE A9
Medium term 100% 100%
lease
f B AY
Medium term 100% 100%
lease
FREFFE 4D
Medium term 100% 100%
lease
REIFE A
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